
Document last changed: 6/10/2009 11:00 AM 

 

Currituck County 
Board of Commissioners Agenda  

Historic Currituck County Courthouse 

 
 Date: Monday, June 15, 2009 Time: 7:00 PM 

 
  

Work Sessions 
6:00 Multi-Family Overlay   
 
Regular Agenda 
7:00 p.m. Invocation 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Item 1 Approval of Agenda 

Item 2 Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Presentation of Meritorious Award to Deputy Brian Dudley and 
Deputy Garland Akers    

Item 4 Presentation on NC FlyPorts Program   

Item 5 Presentation on Currituck Sound Study   

Item 6 Public Hearing and Possible Action of FY 2010 Budget   

Item 7 Public Hearing and Action  PB 09-03 Wild Horse Adventure 
Tours:  Request for a Special Use Permit for outdoor recreation 
(wild horse tours). The property is located at 600 Currituck Club 
Drive, Corolla, Tax Map 126, Parcel 3D, Poplar Branch Township. 

Item 8 Public Hearing and Action  Currituck County Solid Waste 
Management Plan 

Item 9 Approval of Economic Development Board Rules & 
Procedures   and letter requesting input on developments 

Item 10 Appointments to Senior Citizen Advisory Board   

Item 11 Appointment to ABC Board   

1



Document last changed: 6/10/2009 11:00 AM 

 
Item 12 Appointments to Library Board of Trustees   

Item 13 Consent Agenda: 
1. Resolution in support of application to NC DENR-DWQ for 
2. ARRA-CWSRF FUNDING for Moyock Central Sewer Force 

Main 
3. Budget Amendments 
4. Resolution opposing Public Health Improvement Plan 
5. Lease with ITT Corp. for ADSB Radio Station site at Airport 
6. Resolution Declaring Parcel ID 110B00400360000 as Surplus 

Property 
7. Resolution Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for Sale of Parcel 

ID 110B00400360000 
8. Amendment to Code of Ordinances: General Penalty 
9. Resolution Surplus Property Water Department 
10. Amendment to Concession License agreement for Flight 

Instruction at airport 
11. Approval of June 1, 2009, Minutes 
12. Resolution of Appreciation for C. Michael Warren 
13. Moyock Library Change Order 003-Parking Lot Undercut 
14. Airport Hangar C - Change Order for Fire Hydrant and Project 

Close Out 

Item 14 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 15 County Manager’s Report 

Item 16 Closed Session: 
1. According to 143-318.11(5) to discuss acquisition of real 

property, the Historic Jarvisburg School 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Public Hearing and Action on FY 2010 Budget  

Adjourn 

 

 

2



Currituck County
Department of Planning

Post Office Box 70

Currituck North Carolina 27929
2522326029

FAX2522323026

MEMORANDUM

To Board of Commissioners

From Ben E Woody AICP
Planning Director

Cc Dan Scanlon
County Manager

Date June 5 2009

Re RMF Overlay

Per our work session with the Planning Board earlier this year I am providing several
options for exploring changes to the RMF Overlay District As you are aware the RMF
Overlay was intended to promote affordable housing opportunities for Currituck County
residents Additionally I would like to outline a text amendment recently received from
Eric Avery of BDA proposing changes to the overlay

At the BOC and Planning Board work session discussion occurred that the original
intent of the overlay district was to provide workforce housing options Concern was

expressed that the overlay zone has not been implemented as intended and has failed
to provide work force housing There are probably a number of reasons why the
overlay has not been successful but in large part I think the market simply did not exist
for affordable housing Developers have focused on higher priced single family housing
and typically avoided standalone attached housing developments However there
seems to be a recent market shift toward more moderately priced housing options likely
the result of the difficulty in obtaining financial loans

Despite the trend toward moderately priced housing options most developers are still
reluctant to pursue an attached housing development with the obvious exception of the
High Cotton project To the contrary our discussions with developers have focused on

providing smaller detached single family dwellings The general feeling seems to be
that developments consisting primarily of detached dwellings are most likely to succeed
in Currituck County

3



RMF Overlay
Page2of3

The trend toward smaller and lower priced single family dwellings has prompted the text

amendment request received by Mr Avery of BDA The current RMF Overlay District
from a practical standpoint does not allow detached single family dwellings on small

lots due to large setback requirements The amendment request will establish smaller

setbacks and building separations for individual lots allowing what is essentially
detached townhomes For example it would be possible to build a 1500 square foot

townhome on an equally sized lot similar to patio homes in the PUD Overlay District

The text amendment request does provide a clearer direction for how to design and

approve traditional townhome developments ie a row of attached dwellings for which

the building and land underneath is owned by an individual rather than a home owners

association however it also provides for detached townhomes which will have the

appearance of smaller single family dwellings Currently the RMF Overlay only provides
for apartment dwellings or condominium units for which the building may be owned

individually but the land is controlled by a home owners association Again due to

setbacks and building separation requirements it is currently not feasible to build

detached single family dwellings in the RMF Overlay

The idea of providing a clearer regulatory approach for allowing townhomes in the RMF

Overlay is a needed addition to the ordinance The question presented by the text

amendment is whether or not townhomes should be designed as detached dwellings
similar to patio homes or in a row of dwellings consistent with a typical townhome

configuration There is no difference in the overall density or amount of open space

provided rather it presents a different design aesthetic

Maintaining a multifamily zoning option with higher densities is an important tool for the

county to have While the RMF Overlay has not been implemented successfully to

date changing market conditions may provide an opportunity for a viable project in the

near future In addition to clarifying the design of townhome dwellings staff would also

recommend some additional changes to the RMF Overlay
The overlay as currently written allows for narrowly defined accessory

commercial uses It is likely the integration of commercial uses creating a

mixed use development would be more effective if additional flexibility
were given in the range of permitted uses To ensure compatibility with
the residential component language could be added limiting the size and

scale of the commercial use rather than focusing on the actual type of use

Revise the dimensional requirements to allow for townhome style
dwellings see above discussion regarding detached versus attached

townhomes
Remove redundant standards from the ordinance that reference the state

building code or fire prevention code These requirements apply to all

developments and are not within the purview of a zoning ordinance
Rather than list the open space requirements in the overlay it may be

cleaner to cross reference the existing open space requirements in the

subdivision ordinance This removes the redundancy of listing open
space requirements in different sections of the UDO

4



RMF Overlay
Page 3 of 3

Consider requiring RMF Overlay Districts to only be applied in locations

served by centralized water and sewer with adequate road infrastructure
convenient to services and within the Full Service designation of the Land

Use Plan

Finally it is worth mentioning that multifamily dwellings are also allowed in the General
Business zoning district with a Special Use Permit Considering there is more than

4000 acres of land zoned for General Business most of which remains vacant it may
be appropriate to also discuss the function of residential uses in the GB zoning district

Perhaps a requirement that residential development in the General Business zoning
district must include a commercial component would promote mixed use development
while discouraging the possibility of stand alone attached housing developments
throughout the county

Should you have any questions or like to discuss in more detail please contact me at

your convenience

5



Page 1 of l

Gwen Keene

From Sandy Casey
Sent Tuesday June 09 2009957 AM

To Gwen Keene

Cc Susan Johnson

Subject RE meritorious award

They swam a swollen canal to rescue a suspect that was involved in a crime after wrecking his vehicle They
swam back across the canal with the subject so he could be treated by EMS The incident was during a bad
winter storm that had very heavy damaging winds and the temperature wasbelow freezing The officers safely
rescued the subject and all were treated for hypothermia

From Gwen Keene
Sent Tuesday June 09 2009948 AM
To Sandy Casey
Subject meritorious award

Sandy can you send me a brief statement on why they are receiving this award for the BOC agenda info thank
you

692009 6



PB 09-03  
Wild Horse Adventure Tours 

Special Use Permit 
Page 1of 5 

CASE ANALYSIS FOR THE  
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

MEETING DATE:  June 15, 2009 
Special Use Permit 

PB 09-03 Wild Horse Adventure Tours 
 
 
ITEM:  SPECIAL USE PERMIT FOR OUTDOOR RECREATION 
 
LOCATION: 600 Currituck Club Drive, Corolla 
 
ZONING DISTRICT: Limited Business - Hotel Allowed (LBH) 
 
TAX ID:  0126000003D0000 
 
OWNER: James Holdings 
 88 E Main Street, #202 
 Mendham, NJ 07945 
 
APPLICANT: Richard Brown 
 600 Currituck Club House Drive 
 Corolla, NC 27927 
 
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Commercial Zoned LBH 
SOUTH: Residential Zoned LBH 
EAST: Open Space Zoned RO1 
WEST: Residential Zoned LBH 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as Full Service 

within the Corolla sub-area. 
 
 
NARRATIVE: 
1.  According to the application “The proposed use of the SUP is to provide a tour 

service to the northern beaches to see the Corolla Wild Horses.  Tours go out with a 
guide in Suburbans and/or Jeeps.  Tour drivers are familiar with the areas and 
knowledgeable of the rules and regulations of the 4x4 beaches.  Typical activities 
include booking and taking out tours, and small scale sales at the gift shop and art 
gallery.” 

 
2. In-season hours/days of operation are Sunday – Saturday from 8 am. – 7 pm.  
 Off-season hours/days of operation are Sunday – Saturday from 9 am. – 5 pm. 
 
3. Ample parking is available via the Shoppes at the Currituck Club of which Wild 

Horse Adventure Tours is a tenant.   

7



PB 09-03  
Wild Horse Adventures Tours 

 Special Use Permit 
Page 2 of 5 

 
 
4. The Special Use Permit application only pertains to the property located at 600 

Currituck Club Drive.  Associated activities that may occur off-site are not covered 
by the issuance of the Special Use Permit as it is parcel specific. 

 
5.  There are several policies in the Currituck County 2006 Land Use Plan that support 

this type of endeavor.  Some are as follows: 
a. POLICY ED1: new and expanding industries and businesses should be 

especially encouraged that: 1) diversify the local economy, 2) train and 
utilize a more highly skilled labor force, and 3) are compatible with the 
environmental quality and natural amenity-based economy of Currituck 
County. 

b. POLICY HP3: Development of the tourism and educational potential of 
the area's architectural, historic and cultural resources shall be 
encouraged. 

c. POLICY OB2:  So as to minimize Commercial Strip Development and  
maximize the traffic moving capability of NC 12, Currituck County shall 
encourage commercial development to cluster at appropriate locations 
rather than dispersing along NC12. 
 
     

It appears this request as presented is consistent with the policies and objectives of 
the Land Use Plan.  The Planning Department is particularly encouraged to see a 
growing emphasis on eco-tourism industries that expose the general public the 
natural resources of Currituck County.  

 
 
QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special Use Permits are intended to allow the Board of Commissioners flexibility in the 
administration of the UDO. Through the Special Use Permit procedure, property uses 
which would otherwise be considered undesirable in certain districts can be developed 
subject to Conditions of Approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on 
surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve a Special Use Permit, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The criteria 
and suggested findings of fact are outlined as follows: 
 
1. COMPLETENESS OF THE APPLICATION 
 Suggested Findings: 

a) The application is complete. 
 
2. COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS 
 Suggested Findings: 

8



PB 09-03  
Wild Horse Adventures Tours 

 Special Use Permit 
Page 3 of 5 

a) The applicant's proposal will be required to maintain compliance with all UDO 
requirements and any additional requirements of the Board of 
Commissioners. 

 
i. The proposed use will not materially endanger the public health or 

safety for the following reasons: 
Suggested Findings: 
1. According to County Tax Maps, nearest residential dwellings to the 
tract are 250 feet from the proposed use. The parcel is currently a well 
established commercial area which includes retail shops.   

 
ii. The proposed use will not substantially injure the value of adjoining or 

abutting property for the following reasons: 
Suggested Findings: 
1. The Unified Development Ordinance indicates that the operation of an 
outdoor recreation facility is a permitted land use with a Special Use 
Permit in an Limited Business Hotel (LBH) zoning district. 

 
iii. The proposed use will be in harmony with the particular neighborhood or 

area in which it is to be located. 
Suggested Findings: 
1. The parcel is currently in a well established commercial area which 
includes retail shops and is therefore in keeping with the character of the 
surrounding area.   

 
iv. The proposed use will be in general conformity with the Land Use Plan, 

and any other plan officially adopted by the Board of Commissioners. 
Suggested Findings: 
1. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service and the 
proposed use is in keeping with the policies of the plan.   

 
v. The proposed use will not exceed the county's ability to provide 

adequate public facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, fire and 
rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  Applicable state 
standards and guidelines shall be followed for determining when 
applicable facilities are adequate.  Such facilities must be in place or 
programmed to be in place within two years after the initial approval of 
the sketch plan.  In the case of subdivision and multi-family development 
at the sketch plan/special use, preliminary plat or final plat stage, the 
Board of Commissioners may establish time limits on the number of 
lots/units available for development to assure adequate public facilities 
are available in. 
Suggested Findings: 
Approval of this request should have no impact upon public facilities. 

 
 
TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMENTS: 
There are no outstanding TRC comments. 
 

9



PB 09-03  
Wild Horse Adventures Tours 

 Special Use Permit 
Page 4 of 5 

 
 
 
 
 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
The proposal appears to meet the criteria for granting a Special Use Permit for the 
property at 600 Currituck Club Drive and staff recommends APPROVAL with the 
following conditions: 

 
1. When not in use, all horse tour vehicles shall be parked in a properly marked 

space toward the rear of the building in order to improve traffic flow and 
preserve roadside aesthetics. 

 
2. Each side of horse tour vehicles shall be labeled with decals that clearly 

display the company name.  The decal shall be of a size that is clearly legible 
(minimum of four inches in height). 

 
 
PLANNING BOARD RECOMMNEDATION 
The Planning Board recommends APPROVAL with staff recommendations and the 
following condition: 
 

1. All tours must be accompanied by a guide. The independent rental of jeeps 
shall be prohibited. 

10



PB 09-03  
Wild Horse Adventures Tours 

 Special Use Permit 
Page 5 of 5 

PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Ms. Turner asked for clarification on in and off season hours of operation. 
 
Mr. Brown stated it is his office hours and stated he does have the sunset tour year-
round. Mr. Brown provided an overview of the Jeep rental and horse tours. It is 
approximately a 2 hour guided tour and if you can opt for the second part which gives 
you the freedom to finish the tour by leaving the guide and driving along the beach to 
hunt for shells with a metal detector. They usually have 1 hour between each tour. 
They have a route for the horse tours, but if they don’t see the horses on the route they 
may take an alternate route. Mr. Brown provides a map and GPS with each vehicle. He 
will have ten vehicles which will be split between the Jeep tours and horse tours. They 
work closely with the Wild Horse Fund.  
 
The board discussed the Jeep tours not being 100% guided, the use of metal detectors 
and holes left not covered, and parking.    
 
Mr. Clark stated the board has received two letters from concerned citizens on the 
beach: Fruitville Beach Civic Association and Swan Beach Property Owner’s 
Association.  He asked Mr. Brown if any attempt has been made to address their 
concerns. 
 
Mr. Brown stated he will work with groups to address their issues. 
 
Ms. Wilson stated that the Wild Horse Fund does support the general concept of 
guided tours to see the horses. Ms. Wilson asked Mr. Brown if he would consider 
designated routes for his horse tours.  
 
Mr. Brown stated “yes”.  
 
Mr. Woody stated that the SUP will apply to the property where it originates and any 
conditions that the Planning Board may apply must be applicable to the origination 
location.  
 
Ms. Wilson stated that with this request the Board is not considering the impact on the 
four wheel drive area, which is not part of this SUP request before them. The SUP is for 
a certain location, but the largest impact is off-site.   
 
ACTION 
Ms. Turner motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations and language 
prohibiting Jeep rental and only allowing guided tours. Mr. Clark seconded the motion. 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 

11



12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Currituck County  
Solid Waste Management Plan 

 
July 1, 2009 – June 30, 2019 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted by the 
Currituck County  

Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13



 Currituck County Solid Waste Plan 2009 – 2019 
 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
Executive Summary .....................................................................................1 
Planning Goals  .....................................................................................1 
I.  Geographic Information and Waste Stream Analysis .........................................1 
II.   Waste Reduction Goals...................................................................................2  
III.  Meeting the Waste Reduction Goals ...............................................................3 
IV.  Planning Process and Public Participation ......................................................4 
V.   Solid Waste Programs....................................................................................4 
 A.  Source Reduction ............................................................................4  
 B.  Collection .....................................................................................5 
 C.  Recycling and Reuse........................................................................6 
 D. Composting and Mulching .................................................................8 

E. Incineration with Energy Recovery ..................................................8 
F. Incineration without Energy Recovery..............................................8 
G. Solid Waste sent out of Geographic Area.........................................8 
H. Solid Waste Disposal.......................................................................9 
I. Special Waste Management ............................................................9 
J. Disaster Debris Management......................................................... 11 

VI.  Education   ................................................................................... 11 
VII.  Illegal Disposal and Litter Prevention ........................................................... 12 
VIII.  Purchase of Recycled Materials.................................................................. 13 
IX.   Solid Waste Costs and Financing Methods .................................................. 13 
X.   Facilities and Resources............................................................................... 14 
Contacts ................................................................................... 14 
   
 

APPENDICES 
 

Appendix A  Resolutions ................................................................................... 15 
Appendix B  Copy of notice for public meeting..................................................... 16 
Appendix C  Maps of facilities ............................................................................ 17 
Appendix D  Nonresidential Waste Generators.................................................... 20   
Appendix E  Waste Reduction Goal Sheets ........................................................ 21 
Appendix E  Waste Reduction Goal Sheets......................................................... 22 
Appendix F  Planning Element Sheets ................................................................ 23 
Appendix G  Supporting data ............................................................................. 33 
 
  
 
 

14



Currituck County Solid Waste Plan 1 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
Currituck County is growing mainly because it offers a quality way of life, because of its proximity to the 
Hampton Roads area of Virginia, and because of its popular Outer Banks resort area. Both the mainland 
and the Outer Banks have increasing permanent populations, and the Outer Banks sees a huge seasonal 
increase in tourists. The county is building infrastructure including schools, parks, a library, and other 
services, and maintains satellite offices on the Outer Banks. Within the next ten years a very large-scale 
bridge building project should be under way to span the Currituck Sound and connect the Outer Banks 
with the mainland.  
 
The county maintains customized mainland and Outer Banks waste collection and recycling programs to 
make it easy for residents and visitors to participate in recycling while moving large volumes of trash as 
needed. The contract for this service is reviewed frequently, with new services added as needed. The 
county seeks to meet all of the state’s rules and regulations and is keeping ahead of the new landfill bans 
on used motor oil filters, pallets, and numbers 1 – 7 plastic bottles. It has already implemented dry-cell 
battery recycling and CFL recycling, and is seeking to include the public in electronics recycling as soon 
as feasible.  
 
The county has a “Going Green Imitative” in which county elected officials, department heads, NC 
Cooperative Extension Service, NC Forestry Services, CAMA, Sea Grant, and others work towards 
preserving environmental quality and the features that make Currituck County a desirable place to live 
and visit, and working towards less waste, more renewable energy and more energy efficiency for homes 
and businesses. This group will aid the county in achieving the goals through assisting with public 
awareness and  educational programs, code enforcement, program development, and acquisition of 
funding.  
 
 
Currituck County Goals 
 
Goal 1.  To provide everyone in the community with waste disposal, capacity, waste collection services, 
and waste reduction opportunities. 
 
Goal 2.  To increase the efficiency and cost-effectiveness of the solid waste Program. 
 
Goal 3.  To meet the established local waste reduction goals. 
 
Goal 4.  To decrease improper waste disposal. 
 
Goal 5.  To protect the public health and the environment. 
 
 
I.  Geographic Description and Waste Stream Analysis 
 
Currituck County has experienced rapid county-wide growth in Northeastern North Carolina.  The County 
consists of a mainland and an outer banks region, comprising a total of 262 square miles. The County is 
bordered by rivers, sounds, and the Atlantic Ocean, and to the north by the State of Virginia and to the 
west by Camden County.  Currituck County has been a quiet farming, hunting, and fishing community for 
several hundred years, but in the past two decades it has changed rapidly. The permanent resident 
population, according to the most current Census, was 23,731 in the year 2007.1 The population swells to 

                                            
1 State Office of Demography   http://demog.state.nc.us/ 
 

15



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 2  

several times that amount during tourist season in the late spring, summer, and early autumn months 
(approximately 50,000 to 60,000 visitors per week2).  
 
Currituck County continues to grow at a fast rate.  According to the American Census Bureau, Currituck 
has consistently ranked as one of the fastest growing counties in the past decade.  With its favorable 
geographic location, Currituck County has become a bedroom community for the Hampton Roads area, 
and continues to attract residents that desire to live in close proximity to the Outer Banks beaches.  The 
rapid residential growth has also increased demand for construction of public facilities and other 
nonresidential buildings.  However, with the recent downturn in the economy, issuance of building permits 
and approval of nonresidential site plans has slowed considerably.  While this downturn is not unique to 
Currituck County, it will likely temper the high growth rate of the previous decade.   
 
Table 1: Currituck County Solid Waste Generation by Sector shows estimates of waste generation. 
Since 2006 when we last conducted planning, C & D waste has gone down from 30% of the waste stream 
to 19% and commercial waste seems to have stabilized at 28 – 29%.   
 
NC Department of Environment and Natural Resources (DENR) provided the County with the data in 
Appendix D: Currituck County Solid Waste Composition. That data is from a waste stream analysis based 
on state statistics that considers only those wastes that are generally recoverable through recycling and 
reuse, and does not represent the entire waste stream. Also in Appendix D is Table 3:  Non-Residential 
Waste Generators which shows the types of wastes generated by commercial and institutional sectors 
and the industries located in the County.  
 
Table 1: Currituck County Solid Waste Generation by Sector 
 

Waste Type Percent 
Residential / municipal                                  52 
Commercial                                  29 
C & D                                  19 
Industrial                                   1 

 
 
II.  Local Waste Reduction Goals 
 
Currituck County continues to experience permanent and seasonal growth, although at a slower rate than 
the previous decade.  The addition of expanded recycling programs and public education has helped 
reduce the peak of 1.69 tons per capita in 2004-2005 to 1.54 tons in the year 2007-2008.   Table 2: 
Currituck County Waste Reduction Goals Permanent Population demonstrates this point.  In reality 
the county does generate more waste now than in 1991/1992, but it will increase waste reduction efforts 
through education and convenient recycling programs to hold that in check. The county includes Table 2 
(a) Currituck County Waste Reduction Goals Including Seasonal Population Increases to show that 
the seasonal increase in population contributes significantly to the waste stream, and that it still is making 
progress in waste reduction.  Without prevention measures, waste generation increases are likely within 
this planning period. The county will try to achieve the rate of waste generation at 131% of the baseline 
year, or a -31% reduction rate.   
 

                                            
2 Currituck County Department of Travel and Tourism  http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/Travel-amp-
Tourism.cfm 
 
 

16



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 3  

Table 2: Currituck County Waste Reduction Goals Permanent Population  
 

Year Permanent 
Population 

Tons of waste 
disposed/ 

projection* 

Tons per 
capita 

disposal rate 

% 
Reduction 
achieved/ 
predicted 

Tons to 
reduce 

1991/92 
baseline 13,736 13,792 1.0 tons   

2004/2005 22,067 37,234 1.69 -69%  

2007/08 23,731 36,496    1.54 tons -54%  

2014/15 29,534 40,166* 1.38 tons -38% -10,507 

2018/19 33,600 43,952* 1.31 tons -31% -10,416 

 
 
By including the seasonal influx of visitors in the calculation, 0.74 tons per capita were disposed in 
2007-2008, as shown in Table 2 (a). The seasonal population influx is reiterated:  50,000 to 60,000 
visitors per WEEK from May through October have a significant impact on the County’s tonnages per 
capita.   
 
Table 2 (a)  Currituck County Waste Reduction Goals Including Seasonal Population Increases 
 

Year Permanent 
Population 

* Seasonal 
influx (May 
– October) 

Total 
AVERAG

E 
populatio

n 

 
Tons of waste 

disposed/ 
projection* 

Tons averaged 
per capita 

disposal rate 

% Reduction 
achieved/ 
predicted* 

2007/08 23,731 52,000/2 49,731 36,496 0.74 tons 26% 

2014/15 29,534 60,000 / 2 59,534 39,888* 0.67 tons 33%* 

2018/19 33,600 64,000 / 2 65,600 43,952* 0.67 tons 33%* 
 
 
III.  Meeting the Waste Reduction Goals 
  
To reach these solid waste goals the County will: 
 

• continue providing a convenient commingled recycling program at the convenience centers and 
curbside  

• encourage all businesses to sign on with independent recycling providers 
• work with Cooperative Extension Service and the Solid Waste Authority to provide 

comprehensive waste reduction and recycling education programs for businesses, institutions, 
and residents 

• encourage independent residential waste haulers to provide curbside recycling for their 
residential customers  

• apply for government grants to begin new programs or to improve existing ones   
• increase the number of public buildings that have recycling containers for staff and visitor use 
• modify the special event permit process to mandate recycling at venues and special events 
• implement electronics recycling program by December 2009 

17



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 4  

• implement a public education plan for landfill bans on rigid plastic bottles, used oil filters, pallets, 
computer equipment and televisions 

• begin development of a policy to encourage deconstruction and materials recycling in building 
projects 

• work with NC DENR staff to evaluate and approve identified temporary storage sites for disaster 
debris 

• develop a policy to reduce the toxicity of chemicals used by government agencies and facilities 
 
 

Reduction method Targeted materials 

Source Reduction  Junk mail, yard waste, household goods, clothing, 
construction and demolition debris, pesticides, toxic 
cleaning solutions 

Reuse Textiles, household goods, and construction and 
demolition debris 

Composting and mulching Yard waste and untreated wood 
Special Wastes  Paint, pesticide containers, hazardous waste, 

construction and demolition debris, tires, white 
goods, yard waste 

Recycling  Paper, telephone books, cardboard, newspaper, 
office paper, glass, plastic, aluminum cans, steel 
cans, scrap metals, dry-cell and lead acid batteries, 
CFL’s & other fluorescent lamps, electronic waste, 
used oil, used antifreeze, oil filters, all plastic bottles 

 
 
IV.    Planning Process and Public Participation 
 
 
Currituck County wrote this plan with the help of the County Public Works Department, NC DENR, 
Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority (ARSWMA), Waste Management of Hampton 
Roads, NC Dept. of Commerce, and the “Going Green Initiative” team.  
 
A public hearing was advertised and held at the Currituck County Board of Commissioners meeting on 
June 15, 2009. Prior to that meeting, the plan was available for public review for several weeks at the 
County Clerk’s office and at the Public Works Department. The Currituck County Solid Waste Plan was 
accepted by resolution at the meeting of, _____________________, 2009.  
 
 
V.      Solid Waste Programs 
 
A.  Source Reduction  
 
 
The Currituck County Public Works Department disseminates information to educate the public on its 
recycling programs, using the recycling centers properly, as well as information as to how the citizenry 
can reduce receiving junk mail, sign up for subscriptions electronically rather than receiving a printed 
copy and encourages everyone to use reusable shopping bags instead of plastic bags.  Articles are 
published in the County’s quarterly and monthly e-newsletters and also on its website - 
http://www.co.currituck.nc.us/Public-Works.cfm . 
 

18



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 5  

The Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority (ARSWMA) recycling coordinator teaches 
programs on source reduction, backyard composting, and the reduction of toxicity as part of the 
household hazardous waste (HHW) program for students and adult groups.  
 
NC Cooperative Extension staff has made it a goal to conduct outreach programs on recycling, energy 
savings, waste reduction, and other “green” issues. The agency has a “Going Green” steering committee 
that helps decide which issues to teach and promote. Several staff members are actively teaching waste 
reduction programs. This Agency hosted its first annual “Going Green” conference in 2009 that 
encouraged many waste reduction practices including reducing toxicity in household and garden 
products, reducing energy use, making smart shopping choices, recycling, and composting. The staff 
submits information to the county newsletter and local newspapers and publishes articles in its 
newsletters on junk mail reduction, green shopping, back yard composting, and other waste reduction 
measures. The Extension Service updates mailing lists annually to reduce waste. Most of their 
publications are delivered electronically.  
 
To reduce the toxicity of waste, Currituck County participates in the NC Department of Agriculture 
pesticide collection program and the pesticide jug rinsing and recycling programs. More information is 
under Section V., I. Special Waste Management. 
 
 
Intended Actions 
 
The Regional Authority staff and Cooperative Extension Agents plan to routinely teach environmental and 
conservation topic programs through 2019.  
 
The county plans to actively encourage the residents and businesses to reduce waste by participating in 
the Environmental Initiative Committee, producing a recycling video and expanding its website and 
publishing more articles in the County’s quarterly newsletter and monthly e-zine. 
 
B. Collection of Solid Waste 
 
The Public Works Department oversees management of special wastes such as white goods, scrap 
metals, tires, and yard waste at the transfer station site and used oil, oil filters, antifreeze, lead-acid 
batteries, dry cell batteries and fluorescent lamp recycling at the convenient sites.  All responsibilities fall 
under the jurisdiction of the County Commissioners. 
 
The County provides customized waste disposal and recycling programs through the Waste Management 
contract for different parts of the County. Corolla and the surrounding area have high housing densities 
and a greatly increased seasonal population, so curbside trash and recycling service is provided for the 
residential sector, with separate schedules for in-season and out-of-season service. The rest of Currituck 
is served by eight manned convenience centers.  
 
Waste Management, Waste Industries, Bay Disposal and a number of smaller haulers provide 
commercial trash service and some residential routes on the mainland 
 
The county made changes in 2009 in its recycling collections at the convenience sites.  All recyclable 
materials except glass are collected in recycling compactors which are sent to TFC Recycling in 
Chesapeake, VA.  This commingling and compacting all of the materials increases the efficiency of the 
program by sending heavier loads to market and making it easier on the residents who now collect all 
materials together.  The glass, which is collected separately from the other recyclables, is sent to a glass 
market in Elizabeth City. 
 
In January 2009 Currituck County began a new contract for waste collection and recycling services with 
Waste Management of Hampton Roads for a term of five (5) years. 

19



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 6  

 
At its meeting of June 19, 2006, the Board of Commissioners adopted a policy regarding acceptance of 
yard waste at the eight solid waste convenient sites:  A 5 ‘ x 8 ‘ (regular ½ ton pickup size bed) load will 
be deemed to be acceptable for receipt at the convenient site.  A pickup truck OR a trailer load (5’ x 8’), 
one or the other, not both, of vegetative debris shall be accepted at convenient sites from residents. 
 
In May 2009, the Currituck County Solid Waste Ordinance was updated and redrafted for Board of 
Commissioners’ review and approval. 
 
Intended Actions 
 
During 2008, Currituck County issued a request for proposals for waste collection and recycling services.  
Waste Management was selected the lowest responsible bidder and a new 5-year contract was awarded 
effective January 1, 2009, through December 31, 2013.  This new contract directs recyclables to markets 
in the region in n effort to increase the efficiency and improve cost effectiveness of its recycling programs.  
The County intends to continue providing the current level of service for these areas through the contract 
term of 2013.  It will add services as needed to met demands and legislative changes through 2019. 
 
C.  Recycling and Reuse 
 
All manned convenience centers are for residential use only. The centers accept residential waste, 
recyclables, special wastes and yard waste. The recyclable materials collected include glass, newspaper, 
cardboard, telephone books, steel cans, all plastic bottles and jugs, aluminum cans, foil products, and 
scrap metal. The co-mix recycling is taken to TFC Recycling in Chesapeake, the glass products are taken 
to Elizabeth City Glass (ECG) in Elizabeth City, NC, and the white goods are processed on site and 
transported by United Salvage & Auto for recycling. Used Oil, oil filters and antifreeze is collected at the 
manned recycling centers and are picked up by FCC Environmental. 
 
The County provides curbside collection on the Outer Banks from Pine Island to Corolla. All of these 
household recyclable materials are transported TFC Recycling in Chesapeake, VA, for processing and 
recycling. 
 
Confidential papers are shredded on-site by SHRED-X of Manteo, NC, and the resulting material is 
recycled.  County offices participate in single-stream recycling.  Commercial hauling companies are 
contracted to manage the office recycling stream. 
 
Lead-acid batteries, dry cell batteries and fluorescent lamps are collected separately at the manned 
recycling centers and managed by the Public Works Department. 
 
Nearly all County office buildings have recycling carts and recycling dumpsters for the collection of single 
stream co-mingled recyclables.  These are picked up by Waste Management and Bay Disposal for 
recycling.  Recycling dry cell batteries and fluorescent lamp recycling is part of the County Public Works 
Department’s maintenance program. 
 
A private C & D recycling business, Soundside Recycling in Powells Point, is operating in the County, 
diverting hundreds of tons of C & D per year, and producing mulch with some of the wood waste.  In FY 
2008, 2796 tons of commercially generated C&D waste was taken there by private haulers.  Some of the 
lumber and land-clearing materials are ground into mulch, some organics are composted, and other 
materials are sorted and sold to a variety of recycling markets.  One of their main recycling markets from 
this facility reports a recycling recovery rate of 87 – 94% for this business’ “fines” or small leftover waste. 
Some assorted fines and other materials such as carpet an fiberglass must still be landfilled at the ECE 
Landfill. 
 

20



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 7  

NC Cooperative Extension and the Regional Authority conduct educational programs on reducing, 
reusing, and recycling (3 R’s) with school children and adult groups. These are effective, but only small 
numbers of children in the schools are reached each year.  
 
Currituck County participates in at least two paint swaps per year as managed by the ARSWMA.  
ARSWMA has discontinued sponsoring these paint swaps; the County wishes to continue to collect paint 
via a household hazardous waste collection once per year if funding can be found. 
 
The County operates a swap shop for household goods at the Shawboro convenience center that diverts 
several tons of materials from disposal each year.  
 
The Salvation Army maintains a collection box for useful household items and clothes at several 
convenience centers.  Thrift shops are located in Grandy, Moyock, Currituck, Powells Point and Point 
Harbor, and a flea market operates in Moyock. Churches and some of the Extension clubs sponsor yard 
sales or clothing drives.  
 
Radio Shack in Grandy accepts rechargeable batteries and used cell-phone, pager and digital camera 
batteries for recycling. 
 
All unwanted County office equipment, miscellaneous equipment, and vehicles, are advertised to the 
departments, and then offered to fire departments. All remaining equipment is declared surplus and 
auctioned to the public. Other County efforts include using the backs of used paper for note pads and 
shop rags and mops that are reused in the county garage.  These programs save the departments 
money. These also save the County tons of waste. 
 
In October, 2004, the County provided 96-gallon brightly colored recycling containers to the residents 
served by curbside pickup in Corolla (4,000 containers) to enhance recycling by permanent residents and 
visitors during tourist season.  
 
Since 2007, the County has enjoyed a partnership with PCG in recycling portable propane gas tanks that 
are received and separated from waste at the transfer station.  
 
In 2008, the County was awarded a white goods grant which it used to enhance white goods collection 
activities by building a 100’ x 150’ concrete pad at its transfer station area. 
 
All Currituck County Schools now have single stream, co-mingled recycling programs contracted through 
Waste Management. 
 
Intended Actions 
 
Effective January 1, 2009, the solid waste and recycling contract was awarded to Waste Management for 
five years; it will continually be reviewed to see if more, or different, recyclables could be added to the 
program.   
 
A DPPEA grant has been applied for to build a storage building for staging electronic waste at the Barco 
recycling center for disposal by an electronics recycler by January 1, 2010,  in order to divert electronics 
from the waste stream and to comply with legislation effective January 1, 2011. 
 
The County plans to extend the block wall along the entire length of  the concrete pad for white goods 
collection by 2010. 
 
NC Cooperative Extension and the Regional Authority will continue with all of their existing recycling and 
reuse programs and expand them as much as possible through 2019.  They will work intensively with 
residents and schools in 2009-2010.   

21



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 8  

 
The County will continue with all in-house programs and will continue to reuse surplus equipment through 
2019.  
 
The County will continue to provide educational information and market identification to commercial and 
retail businesses in the area in order for those businesses to fully participate in the recycling of usable 
materials (cardboard, plastics, glass and paper.) 
 
D.   Composting and Mulching 
 
The county contracts with a Bowen and Company to provide grinding service, and the chipped pieces are 
used as fuel by Weyerhauser Corporation.  
 
NC Cooperative Extension and the Regional Authority teach backyard composting for some school 
classes and civic groups and perform demonstrations at public events, including the Currituck Garden 
Show. Additional information is published in local newsletters and papers. 
 
Intended Actions 
 
Back yard composting will continue to be encouraged by all of the groups now participating through the 
year 2019.  
 
The county intends to continue with the chipping program through 2019.   
 
E.  Incineration with Energy Recovery 
 
No waste incinerators are available in this region, so that is not an option.  
 
 
F. Incineration without Energy Recovery 
 
No waste incinerators are available in this region, so that is not an option.  
 
G. Solid Waste Sent Out Of Geographic Area 
 
The county's transfer station is operated by Bowen and Company under a contract with Republic Services 
of North Carolina. This transfer station accepts all municipal (MSW), commercial, construction and 
demolition (C & D), and industrial waste from the county plus a small amount of solid waste from Dare 
County and Camden County. The East Carolina Environmental (ECE) Landfill in Bertie County accepts all 
of the waste transferred out.  
 
As a member of Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority the county signed a new 26-year 
disposal contract in May 2009 with Republic Services of North Carolina through the year 2035 to send 
waste to the ECE Landfill.  The counties face high transportation costs related to disposal and relatively 
high tipping fees. Starting July 2009, the counties will be paying a fuel surcharge for hauling when diesel 
fuel rises above $1.26/ gallon. The Gate Rate for waste delivered to the landfill is $40.15 before landfill 
taxes and fees, and $42.90 with those fees. The County will pay to ECE $63.75 per ton plus applicable 
fuel surcharges for all waste delivered to the Currituck Transfer Station for transport to ECE Landfill. That 
includes the charge for managing the transfer station, the gate rate, and the taxes and fees.  
 
Intended Actions  
 
Currituck County intends to continue with this arrangement of transportation through 2035.  
 

22



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 9  

 
 
 
 
H.  Solid Waste Disposal  
 
All solid waste collected at the transfer station is sent to the ECE Landfill in Bertie County.  
 
Some C & D debris is hauled privately to Soundside Recycling in the southern part of the county. There it 
is processed, with a majority of it reused or recycled.  
 
Intended Actions 
 
Currituck County intends to continue with the arrangement with ECE Landfill through 2035. Solid waste 
fees are evaluated and adjusted annually or as needed.  Current tipping fees are $68 per ton for refuse 
that originates in Currituck County and $78 per ton for refuse that originates outside of Currituck County. 
 
I.  Special Waste Management  
 
Construction and demolition (C & D) debris has slowed a bit over the past two years. Small amounts of 
residential C & D (1/2 pickup truck load) may be brought to the convenience centers and put into the 
bulky items containers. Larger amounts and commercially generated C & D must be hauled to the 
transfer station. By contractual agreement, this waste is transferred to the private (ECE) landfill that 
serves the region.  The county has no current programs for C & D recycling or reduction, and would like 
to try to address that issue. One privately run C & D recycling business is now operating within the 
County, and more information about it is in Section V.  C. Recycling and Reuse.   
 
Land clearing and inert debris (LCID) is collected at the transfer station. Concrete is used as fill for 
roadbeds in county projects. Stumps and logs are ground and hauled off site by a contractor and hauled 
away to be used as fuel at Weyerhaeuser and other mulching applications. Some privately owned LCID 
sites operate within the County, and provide an avenue for disposal for some developers and builders in 
Currituck and Dare Counties.  
 
Lead acid batteries are accepted at all convenience centers. Currituck County personnel pick up the 
batteries from the sites and take the batteries and market them to a scrap metal recycler. The proceeds of 
the sale are issued to the County.   
 
Dry cell batteries are now collected at the recycling centers.  These are collected in pre-paid freight boxes 
in the site attendants’ offices and when filled are shipped to Southeastern Recycling. 
 
Compact fluorescent lamps (CFL’s) and 4’ fluorescent lamps are collected at the recycling centers.  When 
the containers are filled, County personnel pick them up and ship them to Veolia Recycling. 
 
Major appliances (white goods) and residentially generated scrap metals are collected at the convenience 
centers and are taken to the County transfer station. U.S. Auto & Salvage removes Freon at that site and 
transfers the materials to markets.  Scrap metal from commercial activity are collected at the white goods 
collection site at the transfer station property.    
 
Residents in the Corolla area may place white goods, tires, yard waste (bundled) and bulky items at the 
curb on their solid waste collection day and the contractor collects them.  This is a very well accepted 
program that the County will not change in the foreseeable future.   
 
The County may wish to begin a mobile home recycling program by 2010 if funding to begin the program 
made is available from the state.  

23



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 10  

 
Residentially generated small tires are accepted at convenience centers. Commercially generated and 
larger tires are sent to the transfer station site. All tires are stored on site in trailers until Waste 
Management transports them to their Hampton, Virginia facility. This program is convenient for the County 
to operate, and convenient to tire generators.  
 
The County collects waste oil, oil filters and antifreeze at all of the convenience centers and the transfer 
station. This provides an adequate level of service for the do-it-yourselfers in the area.   
 
The County has no household hazardous waste collection program of its own, although in 2007 
Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority held a household hazardous waste collection in 
Currituck and Corolla in which many Currituck residents participated.  This program was well received 
and the County wants to continue providing this service dependent upon funding. In late 2008 the 
Albemarle Solid Waste Management Authority (ARSWMA) applied for a USDA grant on behalf of 
Currituck and other counties to conduct household hazardous waste collections and to purchase a small 
permanent Haz-Mat storage building, but this was denied this year. This building would be used to collect 
and divert toxic materials from the waste stream on an emergency basis. The grant includes updating 
educational materials. More grants can be applied for in the near future. 
 
The County participates in a NC Department of Agriculture (NCDA) pesticide collection program every 
two to three years. This is a program where NCDA hosts one-day collections for disposing of pesticides, 
herbicides and similar agricultural and horticultural products.  All residents and producers may participate 
in this valuable and free-to-the-user service, and it works very well for the County.    
 
NC Cooperative Extension continually works to improve its pesticide container rinsing and recycling 
program, to make it more widely used by producers. The County regularly receives Pesticide 
Environmental Trust Fund grants from NCDA to aid in the program, and provides education at the 
pesticide certification meetings, farm visits, and agricultural events. This provides a valuable service to 
the horticultural and farming community, and will be continued with improvements as made feasible 
through grants.  
 
Intended Actions 
 
C & D has been a large portion or the county's waste. The county plans to explore C & D waste reduction 
and recycling options. If feasible, it would like to apply for financial assistance from DENR by 2010 to 
develop a program to reduce this waste stream.   
 
Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority held a household hazardous waste collection in 
Currituck County during FY 2006/2007.  The County will lobby to continue to use available funds for an 
ongoing HHW program through 2019.  Volunteer groups such as Master Gardeners will continue to assist 
with publicizing the events and providing labor on the day of the events. 
 
Cooperative Extension Service is planning to increase participation in the County's pesticide container 
rinsing and recycling program through the year 2019, making improvements as grants are made 
available.   
 
Mobile homes may become one of those added programs if funding for a recycling program is available 
from the state in connection with HB 1134 by 2010.  The Bill is titled: AN ACT TO PROTECT PUBLIC 
HEALTH AND THE ENVIRONMENT BY ENCOURAGING COUNTIES TO DEVELOP PLANS THAT 
PROVIDE FOR THE DECONSTRUCTION OF ABANDONED MANUFACTURED HOMES AND THE 
REMOVAL OF REUSABLE OR RECYCLABLE COMPONENTS, BY PROVIDING FOR THE 
ABATEMENT OF ABANDONED  ANUFACTURED HOMES THAT ARE DETERMINED TO BE A 
NUISANCE, AND TO DESIGNATE THAT A PORTION OF THE SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT TRUST 

24



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 11  

FUND BE USED TO FUND THE DECONSTRUCTION AND REMOVAL OF ABANDONED 
MANUFACTURED HOMES. 
 
This agency will also continue to work with NCDA to hold pesticide collections every two or three years 
through 2019.  
 
The County has applied for a DPPEA grant to begin an electronics recycling program at its Barco 
recycling center.  It is intended that e-waste be collected at the Barco site and housed in a metal storage 
building until an e-waste recycling firm picks them up for recycling.   
 
The county plans to frequently evaluate its special waste programs and seek less expensive and more 
efficient means of marketing, disposing, and managing the materials through the year 2019.  
 
If government funding can be acquired for Currituck to conduct household hazardous waste collections 
and to purchase a small permanent Haz-Mat storage building, it will conduct ongoing collections through 
2019. 
 
J.  Disaster Debris Management  
 
Each year, the County Public Works director solicits rate quotes (rates per hour for equipment and 
equipment operators) and documentation from contractors. Also included is a list of contractor personnel. 
The director keeps this information on file so it is readily available if a major event occurs. The contractor 
personnel list is used to prepare emergency entry permits as required. 
 
The County has access to several sites where debris can be temporarily stored until it is possible to move 
it to the transfer station for disposal. Included are:  a lease on 32 acres in Powells Point; 10 acres in 
Corolla (Newbern Bros.); a site on Knotts Island (NC DOT); 2 sites in the Grandy area; and 5 acres at 
Carova Beach (county-owned land.) The preferred method of disposal for hurricane debris (brush) is to 
use a tub-grinder and the resulting mulch is hauled off for use as fuel by Weyerhaeuser. 
 
Intended actions  
 
The County public works department plans to continue to follow storm waste management practices that 
will facilitate reimbursement by FEMA, DENR, and other agencies through 2019.  
 
The County plans to issue an RFP for disaster debris management in 2009 and have a pre-positioned 
contract in place at the earliest possible time following the evaluation of the proposals received. 
 
The County hopes to implement a method to manage hazardous wastes that are generated by storms by 
2013. The County will work with FEMA, NCDA, DENR, and private contractors to properly separate and 
dispose of hazardous wastes.  
 
VI.  Education 
 
The Regional Authority recycling coordinator conducts educational programs in the county. The 
coordinator teaches at public events, at schools, and with civic groups. The topics taught include the 
County recycling programs, source reduction, reuse, backyard composting, and household hazardous 
waste. The coordinator submits articles on these topics to Extension newsletters and local newspapers. 
 
NC Cooperative Extension Homemaker Educational Issue coordinators share information with the 
membership on 'Preserving and Conserving the Environment'. Information is shared with 4-H and other 
clubs on household hazardous waste, recycling, reducing, and reusing.  Extension has articles published 
in the local newspapers as well as the Extension newsletters, and distributes recycling and solid waste 
brochures.  

25



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 12  

 
Currituck County recycling and solid waste brochures are distributed to civic groups, property owners’ 
associations, at the convenience centers, schools, the library and other County offices. The County 
placed covered bulletin boards at all convenience sites for public education and notification.  This 
information is also on the county web site.  Recycling articles are published in the County’s quarterly 
newsletter, monthly e-zine and signage is posted at all recycling centers. 
 
Intended Actions 
 
The Cooperative Extension agents and the Regional Authority coordinator will continue to teach these 
programs for youth at schools and do outreach into the community through 2019. They will develop new 
programs whenever possible. They will conduct more programs on Household Hazardous Waste to teach 
waste prevention and safe storage of materials and to increase participation in the upcoming HHW 
collection events. 
 
The County is in the process of editing a recycling video made especially for Currituck County’s recycling 
program.  This video will be aired on the public information channel, before Board of Commissioners’ 
meetings and shown at property owners’ association meetings and in schools. 
 
VII.  Illegal Disposal and Litter Prevention 
 
The County has a comprehensive solid waste ordinance that regulates the storage, collection, and 
disposal of solid waste. The enforcing officer is the director of solid waste who gets assistance from 
Zoning Enforcement and the Sheriff’s office. Civil and criminal penalties are included in the enforcement 
section of the ordinance.  
 
Some rural residents burn yard waste where door-to-door pickup is not available. Illegal burning violations 
are enforced by NC Forestry Department.  To prevent illegal burning, the fire marshal posts information 
on the County web site and on the local access cable channel.   
 
The County has a six-foot chain link fence around the transfer station to prevent the spread of litter.  
 
Currituck County uses prison labor and individuals assigned by the Courts to perform community service 
to clean up illegal tire and white good dumps as well as pickup litter around the transfer station and 
roadsides. 
 
County personnel and its educators encourage participation in volunteer events and programs such as 
Big Sweep, Beach Sweep, and Adopt-A-Highway.  Department of Transportation provides bags and 
collects the trash when needed for each of these events, and provides free dumping of this cleanup trash. 
Community service workers and prisoners are used for litter cleanups. Department of Corrections inmates 
and County inmates under the County jail reparation program are used to clean up the landfill, park, 
airport, and beaches. 
 
Intended Actions 
 
All educational efforts will continue, with new materials added as needed through 2019.  
 
The volunteer groups, community service workers, and prisoners will continue participate in litter cleanups 
through 2019.  
 
The County posts illegal burning signs on the bulletin boards at the convenience centers and will post 
information on the County web site and on the local access cable channel, through the year 2019.   
 
 

26



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 13  

 
 
 
VIII.  Purchase of Recycled Materials and Products 
 
The County has an informal "buy recycled" policy and will purchase recycled materials if they are not cost 
prohibitive. Some of the items purchased include copy paper, newsletter paper, bathroom tissues, 
recycling brochures, file storage boxes, paper cups, etc.  
 
Intended Actions 
 
The County will continue buying recycled content material when not cost prohibitive.  
 
IX.  Solid Waste Costs and Financing Methods 
 
Currituck County is a member of Albemarle Regional Solid Waste management Authority (ARSWMA).  
ARSWMA has an agreement with Republic Services of NC, owners of East Carolina Environmental, Inc. 
in which the county must deliver all municipal waste collected except recyclable materials and some 
special wastes to East Carolina Landfill (ECE).  A tipping fee is paid for every ton of solid waste disposed 
in the East Carolina Landfill. This fee varies depending on which transfer station receives the solid waste. 
The rate that Currituck County paid for waste delivered to the Currituck Transfer Station as of July 1, 
2008 was $66.40/ ton. The fee was $45.55/ ton (including fees and taxes) for waste delivered directly to 
the ECE Landfill. 
 
As a member of Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority the county signed a new 26-year 
disposal contract in May 2009 with Republic Services of North Carolina to send waste to the ECE Landfill 
through the year 2035. The gate rate for waste delivered to the ECE Landfill is (as of May) $40.15/ ton 
plus$2.75/ ton in state taxes and landfill fees bringing it to $42.90 with those fees. Currituck County pays 
to ECE Landfill $20.85 per ton for transportation and transfer station management. Therefore, the county 
is now paying $63.75 per ton for all waste delivered to the Currituck Transfer Station for transport to ECE 
Landfill. Starting July 2009 the counties will be paying a fuel surcharge on each ton of waste for hauling 
whenever diesel fuel rises above $1.26/ gallon. This will cause the total tipping fee to fluctuate monthly.  
 
The county generates the revenues needed to pay for disposal, collection, recycling, and managing all 
solid waste programs are generated through the tax base, tipping fees, White Goods and Tire Tax 
revenues and grants, and user fees. Homes in the areas serviced by convenience centers pay a user fee 
of $99.00 per household per year for recycling and solid waste disposal. Homes receiving curbside 
service in the Pine Island to Corolla area pay a user fee of $235 per household per year. 
 
The county currently charges a tipping fee of $68.00 per ton for all wastes classified as commercial, 
industrial, C & D, yard waste and residential.  Waste generated outside the county is charged a tipping 
fee of $78.00 per ton. Residents hauling their own yard waste and C & D to the transfer station (solid 
waste facility at the closed landfill site) are not charged for the first 500 pounds of each. No charges are 
levied for some of the special wastes, including tires, white goods, scrap metal, waste oil, antifreeze, and 
batteries. 
 
Table 3: Fiscal Year 2007-2008 Full Cost Analysis shows the cost per ton and cost per household to 
manage various sectors of waste in the county. This data was compiled from county budget sheets, 
ARSWMA scale reports, and ECE Landfill invoices. The total tons of waste generated by the county 
include tons that were landfilled plus tons that were mulched or recycled. The 'total program costs' figure 
is divided by all tons generated to get the total cost per ton.  
 
 
 

27



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 14  

Currituck County Calculations  FY 2007-2008 
 

Disposed tons*   26,300 tons 
Recycled tons      1,713 tons 
Mulched tons     1,023 tons 
Total tons generated   29,036 tons 

 
As reported in the Section II:  Local Waste Reduction Goal, in early 2009 NC DENR completed the 
County Waste Disposal Report.  At this time, the state calculated that the county’s (residents and 
businesses) disposed of 36,496 tons of waste. Those were hauled by private firms and did not use the 
county transfer station.  The difference between those calculated 36,496 tons and the 29,036 tons 
reported was waste that was not managed through the County (waste direct hauled by others).  Those 
tons are not included in the Full Cost Analysis.  
 
Table 3: Fiscal Year 2007/2008 Full Cost Analysis  

Currituck County 
Waste 

Collection 
Waste 

Disposal 

Reduce, 
Reuse, 
Recycle Mulch 

Total Program 
Cost 

Program cost $1,431,397 $1,671,165 $382,684 $36,464 $3,521,710 

Cost per household (14,176 
households) 

 
$101 

 
$118 $27 $4  

Cost per ton $49 $64 $223 $36 $121 
 
 
X.  Facilities and Resources Available Through Private Enterprise 
 
Waste Collection, Hauling, Recycling  

Waste Industries, Elizabeth City 
GDS, Washington, NC  
Tidewater Fibre, Chesapeake, VA  
Waste Management of Hampton Roads  
Bay Disposal, Inc. d/b/a Outer Banks Hauling 

 
Recycling and Special Wastes 

Tri-State Metals, Alexander, NC   
USA Recycling, Roanoke Rapids, NC  
East Carolina Vocational Center, Greenville, NC 
US Filter, Chesapeake, VA 
United Salvage & Auto (scrap metal), 11476 Hwy 903, Halifax, NC 27839 
Waste Management of Hampton Roads  
Safety Kleen, Chesapeake, VA 
Butler Paper Company, Suffolk VA 
Tidewater Fibre, Chesapeake, VA 
Central Carolina Tire, Sanford, NC 
Futura  (plastics, cardboard, paper), 1200 George Wood Drive, Elizabeth City NC 27909 
ECG (glass), 104 Corporate Drive, Elizabeth City, NC 27909 
Clean Harbours, Reidsville, NC 
Southeast Recycling Technologies of Tennessee  
Unified Recovery Group, Albemarle NC (Debris Removal) 
Bowen and Company (Debris Grinding)  

28



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 15  

Clean Harbors, Reidsville, NC  (Hazardous Waste) 
ECHOFLO, Greensboro, NC (Hazardous Waste) 
 
 

Contacts:  
 

Mr. Daniel F. Scanlon II, Currituck County Manager  
P.O. Box 39 
Currituck, NC  27929 
Phone:  (252) 232-2075 
Fax:  (252) 232-3551 
 
Ms. Brenda K. McQueen, Public Works Dept 
P.O. Box 38 
Currituck, N. C. 27929 
Phone:  (252) 232-2504 
fax:   (252) 232-3298 
 
Mr. Ralph Hollowell, Executive Director 
Ms. Anne Blindt, Recycling Coordinator  
Albemarle Regional Solid Waste Management Authority  
PO Box 189  
Elizabeth City, NC 27907-0189  
(252) 338-4490; (252) 338-4458   
fax: (252) 337-7921 

29



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 16  

 Appendix A 
Resolution from County Board of Commissioners 

 
RESOLUTION ACCEPTING AND ENDORSING THE SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN OF 2009 - 

2019 FOR CURRITUCK COUNTY 

WHEREAS, it is a priority of this community to protect human health and the environment through safe 
and effective management of municipal solid waste;  
 
WHEREAS, the reduction of the amount and toxicity of the local waste stream is a goal of this community; 
 
WHEREAS, equitable and efficient delivery of solid waste management services is an essential 
characteristic of the local solid waste management system; 
 
WHEREAS, it is a goal of the community to maintain and improve its physical appearance and to reduce 
the adverse effects of illegal disposal and littering;  
 
WHEREAS, Currituck County recognizes its role in the encouragement of recycling markets by 
purchasing recycle products; 
 
WHEREAS, involvement and education of the citizenry is critical to the establishment of an effective local 
solid waste program; 
 
WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina has placed planning responsibility on local government for the 
management of solid waste; 
 
WHEREAS, NC General Statute 130A-309.09A(b) requires each unit of local government, either 
individually or in cooperation with other units of local government, to update the Ten Year Comprehensive 
Solid Waste Management Plan at least every three years;  
 
WHEREAS, the Currituck County Public Works Department has undertaken and completed a long-range 
planning effort to evaluate the appropriate technologies and strategies available to manage solid waste 
effectively; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF 
COMMISSIONERS: 
 
That Currituck County’s 2009 - 2019 Ten Year Comprehensive Solid Waste Management Plan is 
accepted and endorsed and placed on file with Clerk to the Board on this ____  day of _________, 2009. 
 
     CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISISONERS 
 
     

By:       _________________________________  
    Chairman of the Board 

ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 

30



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 17  

 
Appendix B 

Copy of notice for public meeting. 
 
 
 

 

31



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 18  

 
 

Appendix C 
Map of Facilities and Disposal Sites 

 

32



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 19  

 Appendix D 
Non-Residential Waste Generators 

 
Table 3:  Non-Residential Waste Generators 
 

Major Categories of Generators Waste 
Construction and Demolition Stumps, cement, brick, wood, untreated and 

treated, composite materials, plastics, pallets, 
glass, metal, gypsum board, carpet, textiles, 
shingles, cardboard, paper, fiberglass, paint  

Dept. of Corrections Paper, cardboard, food waste, plastics, pallets, 
glass, metal, textiles, wood   

Government and Schools Paper, cardboard, food waste, plastics, pallets, 
glass, metal, wood 

Misc. Retail stores, Restaurants, Resorts, 
Motels 

Paper, cardboard, food waste, plastics, pallets, 
glass, metal, wood, textiles 

Agriculture Plastics, cardboard, organic wastes, pallets, 
metals, wood, treated and untreated, paper 

Business Primary SIC Product Category 
Harrellsville Metal Buildings 3441 Fabricated Structural Steel 
Stateline Builders Inc 3448 Custom Wood Buildings & Components 
U S Fiberglass Products Inc 3949 Sporting & Athletic Goods, NEC 
Prospect Generation Systems 2542 Partitions & Fixtures, Except Wood 
Tri-H Molding Co Inc 2431 Millwork 
Bruce & Co Fiberglass Works          Fiberglass spas & hot tubs 
Canvas Coverings Inc 2394 Canvas Products 
Graphic Attack Inc 2396 Automotive Trimmings, Apparel Findings, 

Related Products 
Custom Counters Cabinet Co 2434 Wood Kitchen Cabinets 
Hunter, A B Co 2499 Wood Products, NEC 
Food Lion 5411 cardboard, food waste,  
Sound Feet Shoes 5661 Cardboard 
Ambrose Furniture 5700 Cardboard, wood waste 
Olds, Coinjock, Currituck Automotive 7500, 5531 Cardboard, used fluids, scrap metal 
Dollar General, Family Dollar Stores 5990 Retail NEC Cardboard, pallets 
  
 
  

33



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 20  

Appendix E  
WASTE REDUCTION GOAL SHEET 

NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT TEN YEAR 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 2009- 2019 

Based on Permanent Population 
 
Local government name       _Currituck County _ 
Previously established FY 2015/ 2016 waste reduction goal _-51% 
After considering your government's current and projected solid waste activities, resources, population 
and economic growth will the FY 2012/2013 waste reduction goal change?  Yes _X_ No____ 
If Yes, what is the revised FY 2014/ 2015 waste reduction goal? _-38_% 
Establish a new FY 2018/ 2019 waste reduction goal  _-31 % 

WASTE REDUCTION CALCULATIONS 
To provide 10 years of solid waste management planning, as per General Statute 130A-309.09A(b), 
waste reduction goals are up-dated. Use the following chart to determine the tonnages needed to 
manage without landfilling, to meet waste reduction goals for FY 2014/ 2015 and FY 2018/ 2019. These 
projections do not include seasonal population increases (45,000 to 50,000 visitors per WEEK from May 
to October). Waste per capita of permanent residents now stands at 1.69 tons, so the goal of 1.51 tons is 
a reduction from current rates.  
 
 

CALCULATIONS FY 2014/ 2015 FY 2018/ 2019 
1. Baseline year per capita disposal rate 
(FY 1991-1992 ) 

 
1.0 1.0 

2. Percent waste reduction goal -38% -31% 
3. Targeted per capita disposal rate 
(Subtract line 2 from 1.0 
and multiply result by line 1) 

 
1.38 1.31 

4. Estimated population for July 2015 and July 2019 
(Available at http://www.osbm.state.nc.us/osbm/index.html 

 
 

27,650 33,600 

5. Projected tonnage for disposal at baseline disposal rate 
(Multiply line 1 by line 4) 

 
 

27,650 33,600 

6. Targeted annual tonnage for disposal 
(Multiply line 3 by line 4) 38,157 44,016 

7. Targeted annual tonnage to reduce 
(Subtract line 6 from line 5) -10,507 -10,416 
Waste Reduction Plan -  Given the targeted annual 
tonnage amount to be reduced, explain how you plan to 
reach the goal:  TONS 

 Recycling; 2000 
 Source reduction: 600 

 Composting: 200 
 

 

34



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 21  

Appendix E * 
WASTE REDUCTION GOAL SHEET 

NC LOCAL GOVERNMENT TEN YEAR 
SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN 2009- 2019 

With Seasonal Influx * 
 
Local government name       _Currituck County _ 
Previously established FY 2015/16 waste reduction goal _25% 
After considering your government's current and projected solid waste activities, resources, population 
and economic growth will the FY 2014/ 2015 waste reduction goal change?  Yes _X_ No____ 
If Yes, what is the revised FY 2014/ 2015 waste reduction goal? _30_% 
Establish a new FY 2018/ 2019 waste reduction goal _33 % 

WASTE REDUCTION CALCULATIONS 
To provide 10 years of solid waste management planning, as per General Statute 130A-309.09A(b), 
waste reduction goals are up-dated. Use the following chart to determine the tonnages needed to 
manage without landfilling, to meet waste reduction goals for FY 2012-2013 and FY 2015 - 2019. 
 

CALCULATIONS FY 2014 / 2015 FY 2018/2019 
1. Baseline year per capita disposal rate 
(FY 1991-1992 unless alternate approved by Section) 1.0 1.0 
2. Percent waste reduction goal 33% 33% 
3. Targeted per capita disposal rate 
(Subtract line 2 from 1.0 
and multiply result by line 1) .67 .67 
4. Estimated population for July 2015 and July 2019 
(Available at http://www.osbm.state.nc.us/osbm/index.html 

59,534* 65,600* 
5. Projected tonnage for disposal at baseline disposal rate 
(Multiply line 1 by line 4) 59,534* 65,600* 
6. Targeted annual tonnage for disposal 
(Multiply line 3 by line 4) 

39,888 43,952 
7. Targeted annual tonnage to reduce 
(Subtract line 6 from line 5) -19,646 -21,648 
Waste Reduction Plan -  Given the targeted annual tonnage 
amount to be reduced, explain how you plan to reach the goal: 

 TONS 
 

Recycling: 2000 
 

Source reduction: 600 
 Composting: 200 

 
*Seasonal influx during tourist season of 45,000 to 60,000 visitors per WEEK from May to October has 
been factored into the projected population numbers.   See table on Page 2 of this report.

35



Currituck County Solid Waste Plan 22 

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Disaster Response  
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why 
Incomplete?  

Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th year 

 
Solicit bids from contractors for 
storm debris management 
annually 
 
Implement storm waste 
practices to facilitate 
reimbursement by FEMA and 
other agencies 
 
 
 

Implement a 
method to manage, 
separate, and 
dispose of 
hazardous wastes 
generated by 
storms 

No resources 
available yet 

Solicit bids from contractors for storm 
debris management annually 
 
Implement storm waste practices to 
facilitate reimbursement by FEMA and 
other agencies 
 
Implement a method to manage 
hazardous wastes that are generated by 
storms. Work with FEMA, NCDA, DENR, 
and private contractors to separate and 
dispose of hazardous wastes 
 
Identify TDSRs, work with NC DENR to 
permit and approve for use as needed  
 
Prepare RFP for pre-positioned disaster 
debris removal and monitoring contracts; 
bid out and execute pre-positioned 
contracts 
 

Through 2010 
 
 
 
Through 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
By 2013 
 
 
2010 
 
 
2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

36



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 23  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Purchasing Recycled Products   
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th year 

 
Currituck County has a 
policy to buy recycled 
whenever it is cost 
effective 
 
Extension Service and 
Authority promote buying 
recycled products  
 
 

  Currituck County has a 
policy to buy recycled 
whenever it is cost 
effective, and will 
continue to purchase 
more recycled materials 
 
Purchase items with as 
little packaging as 
possible or with 
recyclable packaging 
 
Purchase least toxic 
cleaning products for 
county facilities 

Through 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Through 2019 
 
 
 
Through 2019 

 

 

37



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 24  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Illegal Disposal / Litter   

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why 
Incomplete?  

Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th 
year 

Work with county and state agencies and 
local law enforcement to control illegal 
dumping, burning, and littering 
 
Continue to encourage volunteer 
participation in Big Sweep, Adopt - A - 
Highway, Beach Sweep, and other 
programs; and use inmates to clean litter on 
roadsides 
 
Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
adopted a portion of Hwy 158.  The BOC and 
county employees have regular litter sweeps 
of the adopted roadway 
 
Continue to coordinate with Sheriff’s office 
and Pasquotank Correctional Facility for 
roadside cleanup by inmate crews 
 
Continue enforcing the Solid Waste 
Ordinance 

  Continue all educational efforts  
 
The volunteer groups, 
community service workers, and 
prisoners will continue 
participate in litter cleanups  
 
The County posts illegal burning 
signs at the convenience 
centers and will post information 
on the County web site and on 
the local access cable channel 
 
Continue upkeep on Adopt-a-
Highway portion of 158 adopted 
by the Board of Commissioners 
with regularly scheduled litter 
pickups by BOC & County 
employees. 

Through 2019 
 
 
 
Through 2019 
 
 
 
Through 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Through 2019 

5 
 
 
10 
 
 
 
5 
 

 

38



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 25  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Special Waste    
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete 
Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Completd Why 
Incom
plete?  

Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th 
year 

 
County to explore methods of C & D 
waste reduction  
 
Increase participation in the  pesticide 
container rinsing and recycling 
program 
 
Extension to continue to work with 
NCDA to hold pesticide collections  
 
White Goods – 100x150’ cement pad 
installed at transfer station 2008 
 
Fluorescent bulbs, CFL’s, dry-cell 
batteries are now accepted at all 8 
recycling centers 2008  
 
Used oil, oil filters and Anti-freeze are 
collected at  8 recycling centers and 
disposed of through FCC 
Environmental 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2008 
 
 
 
 
2008 
 
 
2008 

Private 
C&D 
Salvag
e 
compa
ny in 
the 
county 
receive
s 
salvag
eable 
C&D 
materia
l 

Explore C & D waste reduction and recycling options, 
and try to attain a grant if possible  
 
 
Increase participation in pesticide container rinsing 
and recycling program  
 
Consider mobile homes recycling   
 
Recycle electronics  - DPPEA grant applied for 2009 
 
Evaluate special waste programs and seek less 
expensive and more efficient means of marketing, 
disposing, and managing the materials  
 
Host HHW event for residents, funding dependent 
 
Research end markets for shingle recycling; apply for 
grant to establish a shingle recycling program; obtain 
permits to operate program 
 
Used gasoline collection & recycling program 

By 2013 
 
 
 
Through 
2019 
 
By 2015 
 
 
2009 
 
 
Through 
2019 
 
 
 
thru 2019 
 
 
2013 
 

1000 
 
 
 
 
1 
 
25 
  
 
 
25 
 
 
100 
 
 
 
30 
 
 
 

39



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 26  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Education  
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why 
Incomplete?  

Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th year 

Coop Extension and 
Regional Authority to 
continue to teach reduction, 
reuse, and recycling 
programs and do outreach 
into the community, 
developing new programs 
when possible 
 
Spot ads incorporating 
“Recycle Guys” are airing on 
community public 
information TV channel 
 

  Cooperative Extension and Regional Authority to 
continue to teach all 3-R’s programs 
 
Increase education about HHW to gain 
participation in collections events 
 
Create and air local recycling video on public 
info TV, thru website and local channel – under 
production.  Illustrates source separation & 
proper disposal at recycling centers 
 
Promote the use of reusable shopping bags 
 
Implement a Solid Waste “hotline” for recycling, 
special waste and household hazardous waste 
issues 
 
Publish information about items banned from the 
landfill in the County’s Quarterly Newsletter 
mailed to all property owners and describe the 
programs implemented so the citizenry will be 
aware of the ease of recycling these items. 

Through 2019 
 
 
Through 2019 
 
 
 
2009 
 
 
 
2010 
 
 
2011 
 
 
2009 
 
 
 
 

400 
 
 
30 
 
 
 
 
1500 
 
 
 
.5 + improved 
community 
appearance 
 

 
 

40



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 27  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Disposal   

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th year 

Continue with the arrangement 
with ECE Landfill through 2013  
 
Yard waste ground and sold to 
Weyerhauser for fuel 
 
Fluorescent bulbs, CFLs and 
ballasts are sent to Southeastern 
Technologies for recycling 
 
Dry cell batteries are sent to 
Southeastern Technologies 
 
Used oil, oil filters and antifreeze 
are disposed of through FCC 
Environmental 
 

Contract 
extended to 
2035 

 Currituck County intends 
to continue with the 
arrangement with ECE 
Landfill 
 
Evaluate and adjust 
solid waste fees 
annually or as needed 
 
Co-mingled recyclables 
to TFC, Chesapeake, 
VA 
 
Glass to ECG, Eliz City 
 
 

Through 2035 
 
 
 
 
Through 2019 
 
 
 
1/1/09 thru 12/31/2010 
 
 
 
01/01/09 thru 
12/31/2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2400 
 
 
 
600 
 
 
 
 
 

 

41



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 28  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Transfer outside geographic area    
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons diverted in 
10th year 

 
Continue to accept some out-of-
county waste, charging 
enhanced tipping fees (current 
standard tipping fee $68 per ton 
in 2009, out-of-county tipping 
fee is $78 per ton) 
 

  Currituck County to continue 
with transfer arrangements, 
sending waste through the 
county transfer station in 
Maple to the ECE Landfill 
 
County will change tipping 
fees as needed to match its 
costs.  

Through 
2035 
 
 
 
 
Through 
2035 
 

 

 

42



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 29  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Reduction   
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th year 

County departments to 
continue current reduction 
practices plus new efforts 
 
Continue to promote source 
reduction practices, including 
toxicity reduction  
 
Encourage participation in 
pesticide jug rinsing and 
recycling program to ensure 
waste toxicity reduction 
 
 
 

 
 

 Continue to teach these source 
reduction programs with updates 
as needed 
 
Cooperative Extension to teach 
environmental and conservation 
topic programs 
 
Encourage  community promotional 
reusable shopping bags in lieu of 
plastic bags 
 
Develop a policy to reduce the 
toxicity of chemicals used by 
agencies and facilities 
  
Purchase products & supplies with 
as little packaging as possible with 
the packaging necessary being 
recyclable. 

through 2019  
 
 
through 2019 
 
 
2010 
 
 
 
2012 
 
 
 
 
 
2010 
 
 
 

300 
 
 
 
60 
 
 
 
1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2 
 
 

 
 

43



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 30  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Collection   
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th year 

 
Continue providing waste and 
recycling services for the 
residential sector through 
manned convenience sites 
throughout most of the county 
and curbside collection in the 
Corolla area  
 
Contract for waste collection 
and recycling services renewed 
in 2009 for five years.   Includes 
single-stream co-mix 
compactors, glass collected 
separately; end markets 
specified. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2009 
 
 

  
Continue providing the current, 
and higher where possible, 
level of service for each of the 
areas of the county  
 
Look into feasibility of 
managing recyclables and 
directing those to newly 
opened local markets; 
collection bins and truck for 
transporting same will be 
required; plan to seek grant for 
the equipment 

 
Through 2019 
 
 
 
 
2019 

 
1200 
 
 
 
 
3500 
 

 

44



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 31  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Recycling and Reuse   
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th year 

 
Implemented recycling 
program for all County 
offices & facilities 2007 
Fluorescent bulbs, CFL’s and 
ballasts are collected at 8 
recycling centers and county 
buildings and 
 
Dry cell batteries are 
collected at 8 recycling 
centers & county buildings 
for recycling  2007 
 
Glass to ECG   
 
Co-mingled recyclables to 
TFC, Chesapeake VA  2009 
inclusion of more 
recyclables,   
 
4000 96-gallon recycling 
containers provided by the 
County to residents and 
visitors in the curbside 
pickup area (Corolla) 

 
Goodwill 
Industries staffing 
collection sheds 
 
 
 
sent to 
Southeastern 
Technologies for 
recycling  2008 
 
 
 
2009 
 
 
 Contracts 
effective 
1/1/2009. 
 
Implemented 
2004, ongoing 
thru 2019 

Goodwill 
Industries pulled 
out of their initial 
offer to perform 
this service. 
 

   
Divert more C & D and scrap metal for 
recycling, and develop new programs if 
feasible  
 
Continue with all in-house programs and will 
continue to reuse surplus equipment  
 
Continue Extension and Regional Authority 
recycling and reuse programs  
 
Implement programs to recycle landfill 
banned items before legislation becomes 
effective 
 
Establish electronic waste recycling collection 
center at the Barco recycling center by 
October 1, 2009 
 
Rewrite special use permits requirements to 
include venue and event recycling as 
mandatory 
 
Implement programs to recycle landfill 
banned items before legislation is effective 
 
Research asphalt shingle recycling 

 
 
 
   
 
Through 
2019 
 
 
Through 
2019 
 
Through 
2019 
 
Oct 2009 
 
 
 
2011 
 
 
 
Through 
2019 
 
2011 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
200 
 
 
100 
 
 
 
 
25 
 
 
 
5 
 
 
 
 
 

45



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 32  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Composting and Mulching   

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons 
diverted in 10th year 

Extension Service and 
Regional Authority plan to 
continue to teach and 
encourage the practice of 
back yard composting and 
vermi composting 
 
Yard waste is ground and 
sold to Weyerhaeuser for 
fuel 
 
Christmas tree recycling is 
in effect curbside in Corolla 
and at all 8 recycling centers 

  Continue to teach and encourage 
back yard composting  
 
The county wishes to continue with 
the chipping program  
 

Through 
2019 
 
 
Through 
2019 
 
 

300 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

46



 Currituck Solid Waste Plan 33  

Appendix F 
Planning Elements 

NC Local Government 10 Year Solid Waste Management Plan 
Planning years 2009 - 2019 
Incineration with energy recovery  
  
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons diverted 
in 10th year 

   No incinerators are in this 
region, so this is not an 
available option  

  

 
Incineration without energy recovery 
 
 

Completed Actions 
Incomplete Actions 

New / Revised Actions 

Key Actions Key Actions Why Incomplete?  Key Actions Due Date Estimated tons diverted 
in 10th year 

   No incinerators are in this 
region, so this is not an 
available option 

  

47



Currituck County Solid Waste Plan 34 

 
 

Appendix G  
 Miscellaneous supporting data including ordinances,  

emergency preparedness plan, and buy-recycled policy 
 
 
 
 
Currituck County’s Solid Waste Ordinance may be reviewed at the following 
URL:  http://www.municode.com/resources/gateway.asp?pid=12419&sid=33 
 
 
 
 

48



 
 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

CURRITUCK COUNTY ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
 

 
1. GENERAL 
 

The Economic Development Board shall be governed by the terms of Chapter 
153A, Section 76 of the General Statutes of North Carolina and by the Ordinance 
creating the Currituck County Economic Development Board. 

 
2. OFFICERS AND DUTIES 

 
a) The officers of the Economic Development Board shall be the Chairman 

and the Vice Chairman 
 

1) The Chairman shall preside at all meetings, appoint all standing 
and temporary committees and shall exercise full voting rights on 
all matters under consideration.  The Chairman shall decide all 
points of order and procedure, subject to these rules, unless 
directed otherwise by a majority of the board in session at the 
time 

2) The vice chairman shall perform the duties of the chairman in the 
absence of the chairman.  

3) A temporary chairman shall be elected by a majority of those 
present and voting in the absence of the chairman and vice 
chairman 

4) Communication between the Economic Development Advisory 
Board and the Board of Commissioners shall be handled by the 
Chairman of the Economic Development Advisory Board, or by 
appointed designee of the Board, as approved by special election. 

 
b) A secretary for the Economic Development Board shall be the Economic 

Development director.  The secretary shall keep a record of all business 
transacted at any meeting of the Economic Development Board.  The 
minutes of the board shall be a public record and shall be kept on file in 

49



the office of the County Manager or other office designated by the County 
Manager and available for inspection during regular business hours.   

 
 
 

3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

a) Election of officers shall occur annually prior to adjournment of the 
January meeting.  Officers shall be elected at the meeting and shall take 
office immediately following their election.   

 
b) Nominations shall be made from the floor and elections of officers shall 

follow immediately.  The nomination and election of a chairman shall 
precede the nomination and election of a vice chairman.  

 
c) A candidate receiving a majority vote of the entire membership of the 

Economic Development Board shall be declared elected. 
 

d) Vacancies in office shall be filled immediately pursuant to the provisions 
of this section. 

 
4. MEMBERS 

 
a) The Economic Development Board shall consist of nine members, seven 

of whom shall be appointed by the Board of Commissioners in compliance 
with the Currituck County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 2, Division 3, 
Section 137-138, covering the Economic Development Board (as revised 
in November, 2007).  

 
b) The remaining two members shall consist of a representative of the Board 

of Commissioners and a representative of the Chamber of Commerce.  
These members shall serve the board in an ex-officio capacity, and shall 
not have voting power nor be eligible for leadership positions on the 
board.   

 
c) Faithful attendance and conscientious performance of the duties required 

of the members shall be considered a prerequisite of continuing 
membership.  Failure to attend at least 50% of the meetings in any six-
month period may, by vote of the majority, result in the Board requesting 
that the member be replaced. 

 
5. REGULAR OR SPECIAL MEETINGS 
 

a) The regular monthly meeting shall be held at the Bank of Currituck, 
Grandy Branch, on the fourth Thursday of each month at 7:00 p.m.  In the 

50



event of a conflict with a holiday or other events, a meeting may be 
suspended by the chairman. 

 
b) A quorum shall consist of four board members qualified to vote on the 

matter at hand.  The number of votes necessary to transact business shall 
be a majority of those present and voting.  All votes shall be recorded.  

 
c) Special meetings may be called by the chairman upon 48 hour advance 

notice to members of the board.  Pursuant to the open meetings law, G.S. 
143-318.12(b), notice shall also be given to the public and media.  It shall 
be the duty of the chairman to call a special meeting when requested to do 
so by a letter signed by a majority of the members of the board when, in 
the judgment of the chairman, such meetings are necessary.   

 
d) All hearings, deliberations and actions of the board shall be conducted 

openly and each official meeting shall be open to the public.  For the 
purposes of the provisions of these rules concerning open meetings, an 
official meeting of the board is defined as any gathering at any time or 
place or the simultaneous communication by conference telephone or 
other electronic means of a majority of the board members for the purpose 
of conducting hearings, participating in deliberations, or voting upon 
otherwise transacting public business within the jurisdiction, real or 
apparent, of the board. 

 
e) The order of business fir regular meetings of the board shall be as follows:  

 
1. Call to Order 
2. Attendance / Quorum 
3. Approval of Minutes 
4. Public Comment 
5. Reports 
6. New Business 
7. Announcements 
8. Adjournment 

 
6. DUTY TO VOTE 
 

Every member must vote unless excused by a majority vote.  A member who 
wishes to be excused from voting shall so inform the chairman, who shall take a 
vote of the remaining members. 

 
7. CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

 
Members of the Board shall have a duty to disclose to the board any conflicts of 
interest that may exist or may occur from time to time as to matters before the 
board.  

51



  
 
 

8. REFERENCE TO ROBERT’S RULES OF ORDER 
 
To the extent not provided for in these rules and to the extent that the reference 
does not conflict with the spirit of these rules, the board shall refer to Robert’s 
Rules of Order.   

 
9. AMENDMENTS 

 
These rules of procedure may be amended by a majority vote of the board 
provided that the proposed change shall have been submitted in writing at the 
previous regular meeting of the board.   

52



  
Currituck County  

                                      
Post Office Box 39 

Currituck, North Carolina 27929 
252-232-2075 

FAX 252-232-3551 
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: May 29, 2009 
 
To:  Board of Commissioners Chairman Owen Etheridge 
 
From: Peter F. Bishop, Economic Development Director  
 
CC: Board of Commissioners, County Manager, EDAB 
 
RE:  Economic Development Advisory Board Request for Input on Developments 
  
 
Mr. Chairman,  
 
At the May 28, 2009 regular meeting of the Currituck County Economic Development Advisory Board, the 
appointed members of the board expressed a strong interest in taking a larger role and having a voice in 
the planning and development of Currituck County.  As such, the Currituck County Economic Development 
Advisory Board passed a motion requesting this letter be read into the minutes at the June 1, 2009 
meeting of the Board of Commissioners.   
 
The Economic Development Advisory Board can assist the Board of Commissioners in making the best 
decisions for the residents of Currituck County by utilizing the membership to assess projects and 
opportunities from a long-term development perspective.  This will result in a stronger partnership and 
relationship with the Board of Commissioners.   
 
Specifically, the Economic Development Advisory Board membership requests that the Board of 
Commissioners allow the advisory body sufficient time and opportunity to:  
 

• Adopt specific rules and procedures to the Economic Development Advisory Board, including 
changes to the communication procedure with the Board of Commissioners 

• Comment and provide analysis and input on the manifold projects, objectives and 
developments within the County 

• Enable the Economic Development Advisory Board to take part in master-planning discussions 
and visioning for the County  

 
On behalf of the Currituck County Economic Development Advisory Board, I ask that you please consider 
this request for action.   If you have any questions regarding this request, please contact me or your 
appointed member of the EDAB to discuss this letter further.   
 
Respectfully submitted on behalf of the Economic Development Advisory Board, 
 

  
  
 Peter F. Bishop 
 Economic Development Director  

53



10f24f2007 0921 2524293231 KNOTTS IS SR CNTR PAGE 02f02

051g083FAXbx232T74 CtJRRITiJLgkNIOR CSR 3 11TT1 ISLANDwlliA4via wyllwwrw

t

r

Iil4siiivll SIRVli JlSLiIfw1

d oy

i
A J

NL i

MI

14illpf1

foZ9 1 1

itpbrtawiikaMrsY
1xpmrs

Amt81
tntioi

ranyBti

ktetivg83

161tBrn i

RIaertnr

Gl1olnvIopqunHo

oi

1ide tlMSto18ldla d 19tNC c

lrlQ i eo4ds11rttRoL

Inc

C ptk tts C1t1ty s woe
Psa3g
rrritunit C 9

54



05192009 0211 FAX 252 232 7734 CLTRRITLTCR SENIOR CENTER j001

5 3 si

APPYXCATION FORADVI90RY BOARDS COMIVIITTEES

bate d

Name Yl CJ Q 111 1S d

Address oC Y14 f h l

Fhone a LS 9

Boardsor Committeeson which you would like to serve

Pleastr check

AIiC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Authority
Board ofAdjustmeut
8cornic Development Board

Game Commission

Jury Commission
Land Tragsfer Tax Apptals 13osrd

Library BOaId

Nursing Homo Advisory Corm1iRaE
Planniag Board
Soaior Citizens Advisory Board
Soc3a19avices Board

Recreation Advisory Board

Whalehpgd Preservatiopxxast
Worldorce bevolepaaont Board

Qv fzcatioqgand reaso you would tike serve

y

1

t

s

Please retuzn to county N1aagersOffice
tC Bax 39

Cutritttck NC279x9

55



ut s

APPLICATION FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMMITTEES

Date 5 d 9

Name 0 YL4 y Ci E

o ti

Phone

Boards or Committees on which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Authority
Board ofAdjustment
Economic Development Board

Game Commission

Jury Commission

Land Transfer Tax Appeals Board

Library Board

Nursing Home Advisory Committee

Planning Board

Recreation Advisory Board

Senior Citizens Advisory Board

Social Services Board

Tourism Advisory Board

Whalehead Preservation Trust

Workforce Development Board

andrssons you would like to serve

Please return to County anagers ffice
PO Box 39 i

Currituck
NC 27929

ir
Zi1u

1 a

56



uiiicuua 11sU rliX 2522323551 CURRITLTCH COUNTY MANAGER

urrtcrkL Y t

ApPYTCATION FOR ADVISORY BOARDS COMMITTEES

17ate

Name Pi Yj ln1 w S

Address l o ybn sI d

Phone a Sa 3 5 lS 1 9

Boards or Committeeson which you would like to serve

Please check

ABC Board

Agricultural Advisory Board

Airport Advisory Autboriry
Board ofAdjustment
Economic Aeveiopment Board

Game Commission
ury Commission
LandTransfer Tax Appeals Board

as and reasons you would Like to serve

Library Board

Nursing Home Advisory Committee
T

Planning Board
Senior CitizeAS Advisory Board

Social Services Board

Recreation Advisory Board
Whalehead Preservatio Trust
Workforce bevelopxnent Board

fool

h OrliCq T

Gf S2V S s ti Li rajri j T h

w arc w i S e i S 1v Y hS

Please return to Couny1V1auagers Office

PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

57



Page 1 of 1

Gwen Keene

From Diane Bray
Sent Wednesday May 20 2009 1036AM

To Gwen Keene

Subject Senior Center Advisory Board

Sue Austin resigned from the Fruitville TownshipLarry Etherdige lives on Knotts Island would like to finish Sue
Austinsterm on the Senior Center Advisory Board Her term

Expires11911 1st term

Bob Klingler resigned from the Moyock TownshipLinda Jimerson lives in Moyock would like to finish Bob
Klingler term which expires on41511 2nd term

Audrey Simmons from the Crawford Township Coinjock term has expired on41209Leona Aydlette lives in
Coinjock would like to be appointed to the Senior Advisory Board

Gerie Andrews from Moyock would like to serve on the board To finish the term of Bob Klingler yIJ

Diane Bray
Senior Center Coordinator

5202009 58



SENIOR CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Sue Austin** District 1 1st       1/19/2011

Jo Stepp District 2 1st       7/12/2009

William Freethy District 3 2nd       1/14/2010

Audrey Simmons* District 4 2nd       4/12/2009

Rosalie Rose District 5 1st         1/1/2011

Shirley Falls At-Large 2nd       1/11/2012

Bob Klingler** At-Large 2nd       4/15/2011
Unexpired Term

Peggy Stewart 10/11/2009

Grace Yingling 1st       7/12/2009

* COMPLETING SECOND TERM - NOT ELIGIBLE FOR REAPPOINTMENT

**RESIGNED

59



SENIOR CITIZEN ADVISORY BOARD
3 Year Terms

60



ABC BOARD
3 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Harold Capps District 1 8/2007 1st       8/31/2010

Dave Webber District 2 1/2007 1st       1/31/2010

David Myers District 3 5/2009 2nd        5/4/2012

Horace Bell, III District 4 5/2006 1st       5/15/2009

Charles Eley District 5 1/2007 2nd      1/31/2010

At-Large

At-Large

61



LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
4 Year Terms

Nominated Date of
Incumbent by New Appointee Nominated by Appointment End of Term

Stephanie Miller District 1 5/18/2009 (2 Yr) 2nd       6/30/2011

Dr. Norman Dahm District 2 5/18/2009 (2 Yr) 2nd       6/30/2011

Ramona Humphries ** District 3                (3 Yr) 2nd       6/30/2009

Marita Powell * District 4                (3 Yr) 1st        6/30/2009

Paul O'Briant ** District 5                (1 Yr) 2nd       6/30/2009

George Gregory At-Large 5/18/2009 (1 Yr) 1st       6/30/2010

Rhonda Cheek At-Large 2nd       6/30/2010

Marion Thorn 2nd       6/30/2012

Dr. Alison Boone-Heyder 1st       6/30/2012

*  COMPLETING FIRST TERM - ELIGIBLE FOR REAPPOINTMENT

** COMPLETING SECOND TERM - NOT ELIGIBLE FOR REAPPOINTMENT

62



RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION TO NC DENR-DWQ FOR  
ARRA-CWSRF FUNDING FOR MOYOCK CENTRAL SEWER FORCE MAIN 

 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the 

Water Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of 
loans and grants to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of 
construction of (state whether a wastewater treatment works, wastewater 
collection system, drinking water treatment works, and/or drinking water 
distribution system), and 

 
WHEREAS, The County of Currituck has need for and intends to construct a wastewater 

collection system project described as Phase I, Moyock Central Sewer Force 
Main, and 

 
WHEREAS, The County of Currituck intends to request state grant and loan assistance for the 

project, as authorized by the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE (GOVERNING BODY) OF THE 
County of Currituck: 
 

That the County of Currituck, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all 
remaining costs of the project, if approved for a State loan or grant award. 
 
That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of 
the project a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will 
provide adequate funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of 
the system and the repayment of all principal and interest on the debt. 
 
That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan 
agreement a provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the County 
of Currituck to make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the 
County of Currituck any State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the 
local government unit in an amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and 
payable to the State as a repayment of the loan. 
 
That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the 
project on completion of construction thereof. 
 
That Daniel F. Scanlon II, County Manager, the Authorized Official, and 
successors so titled, is hereby authorized to execute and file an application on 
behalf of the Applicant with the State of North Carolina for a (loan or grant) to 
aid in the construction of the project described above. 
 
That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and 
directed to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request 
in connection with such application or the project:  to make the assurances as 
contained above; and to execute such other documents as may be required in 
connection with the application. 
 
That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with 
all Federal, State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to 

63



the project and to Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto. 
 
Adopted this the 15th day of June, 2009 at Historic Currituck County Courthouse,  
North Carolina. 

 
 
 

(J. Owen Etheridge) 
 

(Chairman, Currituck County Board of Commissioners) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER 
 
 

The undersigned duly qualified and acting Clerk of the County of Currituck does hereby certify:  

That the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the 

filing of an application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally 

convened meeting of the Currituck County Board of Commissioners duly held on the fifteenth  

day of June, 2009; and, further, that such resolution has been fully recorded in the journal of 

proceedings and records in my office.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand 

this            day of                           , 20       . 

 
 

(Signature of Recording Officer) 
 

(Gwen H. Keene, Clerk to the Board) 
 

64



Number 2009134

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

50790-590000 Furniture & Fixtures 15,000$                      
50790-596100 Professional Services 14,069$                      
50790-594500 Contract Services 227,316$                    
50380-481000 Investment Earnings 256,385$                  

256,385$                    256,385$                  

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 15th day of June 2009, 
passed the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 
2009.

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - Increased by $256,385.

Moyock Library Construction (50790) - Increase appropriations for the construction of the 
Moyock Library to bring in three phase power to the site, change order number 3 for McKenzie 
and consulting fees for additional undercut of the parking lot, reimburseable expenses and 
additional furnishings for the display room.

65



Number 2009135

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10330-430200 Adoption Assistance 48,000$                   
10760-532900 Foster Care Supplement 48,000$                      

48,000$                      48,000$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 15th day of June 2009, passed 
the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $48,000.

County Assistance (760) - Adjust line item to reflect additional Special Child Adoption funds 
received from the state.

66



Number 2009136

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

10550-545000 Contract Services 28,280$                      
10550-590000 Capital Outlay 22,500$                   
10550-506000 Insurance Expense 5,780$                     

28,280$                      28,280$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 15th day of June 2009, passed 
the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change.

Airport (10550) - To transfer funds to provide bird proofing construction for airport hangars A and B 
as outlined in estimate from Mid-Atlantic Garage Doors dated 5/16/2009.

67



Number 2009137

Debit Credit

Decrease Revenue or Increase Revenue or
Account Number Account Description Increase Expense Decrease Expense

52330-448100 Canal #2 Salinity Study 37,900$                      
52410-561000 Professional Services 37,900$                   

37,900$                      37,900$                   

Explanation:

Minute Book # ___________,  Page # ________________

Journal # _____________________ Clerk to the Board

BUDGET AMENDMENT

The Currituck County Board of Commissioners, at a meeting on the 15th day of June 2009, passed 
the following amendment to the budget resolution for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009.

Net Budget Effect: Multi-year Grant Fund (52) - Decreased by $37,900.

Canal #2 Salinity Study (52410) - To close out grant funding for the Canal #2 Salinity Study that is 
no longer active.

68



RESOLUTION OPPOSING THE “PUBLIC HEALTH  
IMPROVEMENT PLAN” AS  

CONTAINED IN SENATE BILL 202 
 
 
Whereas, Section 10.26 of Senate Bill 202 contains a provision entitled “Public Health 
Improvement Plan”, and 
 
Whereas, the Public Health Improvement Plan was proposed with no input from local 
government officials or local and State public health professionals, and  
 
Whereas, the plan sets out an unreasonable timeline for such reform of the current public 
health system, and 
 
Whereas, the plan calls for no additional public health funding, rather a redistribution of 
the existing, insufficient funds with no defined distribution formulas, and  
 
Whereas, the plan calls for the creation of a Public Health Improvement Plan Task Force 
which is a duplication of the existing Public Health Task Force, and 
 
Whereas, many Northeastern North Carolina counties are in the process of re-building 
the Mental Health infrastructure requiring greater contributions of local funds, and  
 
Whereas, the same Northeastern North Carolina counties can ill afford alteration of the 
public health infrastructure requiring greater local funding to provide core public health 
services,  
 
Now therefore be it resolved; that Currituck County is opposed to Section 10.26 of 
Senate Bill 202 or any other budget provision entitled Public Health Improvement Plan 
and stands opposed to any efforts to reform public health absent appropriate planning and 
input from local government officials and local public health professionals. 
 
Adopted this the 15th day of June, 2009 
 
ATTEST:   _____________________ 
    J. Owen Etheridge 
__________________ Chairman 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 
 

69



NORTH CAROLINA 
         LEASE AGREEMENT 
CURRITUCK COUNTY 
 
 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _______ day of June, 2009, by 
and between County of Currituck, North Carolina whose address is P. O. Box 39, Currituck, 
North Carolina 27929, (the “County”) and ITT Corporation, (“ITT”), whose address is 12975 
Worldgate Drive, Herndon, Virginia 20170. 
 

RECITALS: 
 
 WHEREAS, the parties understand and agree that this agreement is taken in support of 
FAA Contract DTFAWA-07-C-00067, issued to ITT on August 30, 2007; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the County is authorized to enter into this agreement pursuant to N.C. Gen. 
Stat. §63-53. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 

1. PREMISES 
 

The County hereby leases to ITT the following described property located in Crawford 
Township, Currituck County, North Carolina: 
 
An area 25 feet by 25 feet adjacent to the existing FAA tower at the Currituck County 
Airport. 
 
(a) Together with a right-of-way for ingress to and egress from the premises; a right-

of-way for establishing and maintaining electric power and telecommunication 
lines to the premises; and unless herein described otherwise, to be by routes 
reasonable determined and agreed by the parties. 

 
(b) And the right to make alterations to the premises to support the ITT radio site 

equipment, after concurrence by the Lessor as to the site design details prior to start 
of construction and prior to any alterations during the life of this lease. 

 
2. PUBLIC UTILITIES 

 
ITT is responsible for the provision of any and all required electrical power and/or 
telecommunications services to the leased site for the term of this lease.  The County is 
not responsible to provide any type of public utilities at or on the leased site. 
 
 

70



3. TAXES 
 

ITT shall be responsible for the payment of any applicable taxes, fees or governmental 
assessments against any equipment, personal property and/or improvements owned, 
leased or operated by ITT or directly associated with ITT’s use of the leased area. 
 

4. INSURANCE 
 

ITT shall maintain in full force during the term of this Agreement and shall cause all 
contractors or subcontractors performing Work on the leased area prior to the 
commencement of any such Work on behalf of ITT to maintain the following 
insurance: 
 
1. Worker’s Compensation Insurance with statutory limits in accordance with all 

applicable state, federal and maritime laws, and Employers’ Liability Insurance 
with minimum limits of $500,000.00 per accident/occurrence, or in accordance 
with all applicable state, federal and maritime laws. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability Insurance (Bodily Injury and Tower Collateral 

Damage) the limits of liability of which shall not be less than $1,000,000.00 per 
occurrence. 

 
5. TERM 
 

To have and to hold said premises with their appurtenances for the term beginning at 
the date of this lease agreement, subject to renewal rights, as may be hereafter set forth. 
 

6. CONSIDERATION 
 

ITT shall pay the County no monetary consideration in the form of rental, it being 
mutually agreed that the rights extended to ITT herein are in consideration of the 
obligations assumed by ITT in its establishment, operations and maintenance of the 
ADS-B radio station facilities upon the premises hereby leased. 
 

7. RENEWAL 
 

This lease may be renewed from year to year at the option of ITT upon the terms and 
conditions herein specified.  ITT’s Option shall be deemed exercised and lease 
renewed each year for one (1) year unless ITT gives the Lessor thirty (30) days written 
notice that it will not exercise its option, before this lease or any renewal thereof 
expires; provided that no renewal thereof shall extend the period of occupancy of the 
premises beyond September 30, 2025. 

 
 
 
 

71



8. RESTORATION 
 

It is hereby agreed between the parties, that upon termination of its occupancy, ITT 
shall restore the property which is the subject matter of this lease including removal of 
structures, equipment, and fencing but excluding foundations and subsurface ducting, 
cables, and grounding systems. 
 

9. INTERFERENCE WITH RADIO SITE OPERATIONS 
 

The County agrees not to erect or allow to be erected any structure or obstruction on 
the site or adjoining land within the airport boundaries that may interfere with the 
proper operation of the facilities installed by ITT under the terms of this Lease unless 
consent hereto shall first be secured from ITT in writing.  ITT consent shall not be 
unreasonably withheld and ITT shall support the Lessor in the evaluation of any 
potential interference issues.  The County shall act in a reasonable way for any 
construction in proximity to the communication tower, with regard to new construction 
and RF interference.  The Lessor shall be allowed to pursue construction activity 
giving proper clearance to Lessee’s tower communication activities.  ITT consent shall 
also be contingent upon FAA approval, when interference results in limitations in radio 
station performance within the NAS. 
 

10. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCE 
 

ITT agrees to remediate, at its sole cost, all hazardous substance contamination on the 
leased premises that is found to have occurred as a direct result of the installation, 
operation, and/or maintenance of ITT’s facilities. 
 
The Lessor agrees to save and hold ITT harmless for an and all costs, liabilities and/or 
claims by third parties that arise out of hazardous contamination found on the leased 
premises not directly attributable to the installation, operation and/or maintenance of 
ITT’s facilities. 
 

11. QUIET ENJOYMENT 
 
The Lessor warrants that they have good and valid title to the premises, and rights of 
ingress and egress, and warrants and covenants to defend ITT’s use and enjoyment of 
said premises against third party claims. 
 

12. CONTACT DISPUTES 
 

This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North Carolina.  If any 
provision of this Agreement is found invalid or unenforceable under judicial decree or 
decision, the remaining provisions of this Agreement shall remain in full force and 
effect. 
 
 

72



13. SUCCESSORS 
 

The terms and provisions of this lease and the conditions herein bind the Lessor and the 
Lessor’s heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns. 
 
The terms and provisions of this lease and the conditions herein bind ITT and ITT’s 
heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns. 
 

14. NOTICES 
 

All notices/correspondence shall be in writing, and shall be addressed as follows (or to 
such other address as either party may designate from time to time by notice or 
correspondence to the other). 
 
TO LESSOR:  County of Currituck 
    P. O. Box 39 
    Currituck, NC  27929 
 
TO ITT:   ITT Corporation 
    12975 Worldgate Drive 
    Herndon, Virginia 20170 
    Attention:  ADS-B Subcontracts Department 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto subscribed their names as the 
date above written. 
 
ATTEST:         COUNTY OF CURRITUCK 
 
 
By:________________________      By:___________________________________ 
      Gwen H. Keene              J. Owen Etheridge, Chairman 
      Clerk to the Board              Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
(COUNTY SEAL) 
 
 
          ITT CORPORATION 

 
 
          By:__________________________________ 
                 
 
          Date:________________________________ 
 
 

73



 

74



75



R E S O L U T I O N 
 
 

WHEREAS, Currituck County obtained title to parcel 110B00400360000 located 
in the Poplar Branch Township through a property tax foreclosure; and 

  
WHEREAS, this parcel is not currently serving a governmental use or purpose; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this parcel holds only a nominal value to Currituck County, and the 
County would be better served if this parcel was returned to the County tax roll. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of 
Currituck County, North Carolina, during its regularly scheduled meeting held on 
June 15, 2009, authorized that parcel 110B00400360000, located in Poplar 
Branch Township, recorded in Deed Book 384, page 465 is declared as surplus 
property, pursuant to North Carolina General Statute Section 160A-265. 
 
 
ADOPTED, this 15th day of June, 2009. 
 
 
 
____________________________________ 
J. Owen Etheridge, Chairman 
Currituck County Board of      
Commissioners 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 
 
 

76



D Stephen Clinton
109 Rainbow Drive 923 Livingston Texas 77399 9569751213

1

Clerk to the Board ofCommissioners

153 Courthouse Rd

PO Box 39

Currituck NC 27929

June 2 2009

Dear Members of the Board ofCommissioners

I would like to submit a bid of7500 for 182 Michael Street Parcel Number 110800400360000 in the

Albemarle Sound Beach Estates l amsubmitting 59cash which is 5ofmy bid

35
Until June 151 am staying at 4009 Martins Point Rd Kitty Hawk NC 27949 At all times I can be reached by the

above phone number

Sincerely

Y

D Stephen Clinton

77



Search Properties

Home Government Citizens Business Leisure Online Services Site Mapl Contact

General

Information

Move Pointer Here for Al Owners
Parcel ID 110800400360000 Owner CURRITUCK COUNTY

Property Address 182 MICHAEL ST PO BOX 9

ARVISBURG NC 27947

CURRITUCK NC 27929

Acres 000

Lot 36 Block 4 Section 1

ASB
Map S10B Jurisdiction 10 Subdivision ELKS

111

Legal Desc ALBEMARLE SOUND BEACH BLOCK 4 LOT 36

SALE INFORMATION

Book 384 Page 465 Price 846 Date6181996 Valid N

VALUES

Land 12113 Building 0 Total 12113
Deferred 0 Taxable 12113

Page 1 of 1

Home Government Citizens Business Leisure Online Services Site Map Contact

rc 2004 Currituck County Government PrivacPolicv Disclaimer

httpscurrituckeoccomCURRITUCKWEBTabGeneralaspxpidllOB00400360000 642009

Home Government Tax Department Property Information
Search Propert

PROPERTY INFORMATION
Search Sales

78



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS 
 

WHEREAS, The County of Currituck owns certain property, PIN 1110B00400360000, 
182 Michael Street, Lot 36, Block 4, Albemarle Sound Beach Estates, Jarvisburg, NC, 
located within Poplar Branch Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160-269 permits the county to sell property 
by upset bid, after receipt of an offer for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has received an offer to purchase the property described above, 
in the amount of $7,500.00, submitted by D. Stephen Clinton, Livingston, Texas. 
 
WHEREAS, D. Stephen Clinton has paid the required five percent (5%) deposit on this 
offer; 
 
THEREFORE, THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CURRITUCK COUNTY 
RESOLVE THAT: 
 

1. The Board of Commissioners authorizes sale of the property described above 
through the upset bid procedure of North Carolina General Statute 160A-269. 

2. The County Clerk shall cause a notice of the proposed sale to be published.  
The notice shall describe the property and the amount of the offer, and shall 
state the terms under which the offer may be upset. 

3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received shall submit a 
sealed bid with their offer to the office of the County Clerk within 10 days after 
the notice of sale is published.  At the conclusion of the 10-day period the 
County Clerk shall open the bids, if any, and the highest such bid will become 
the new offer.  If there is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first 
such bid received will become the new offer. 

4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, the County Clerk shall cause a new 
notice of upset bid to be published, and shall continue to do so until a 10-day 
period has passed without any qualifying upset bid having been received.  At 
that time, the amount of the final high bid shall be reported to the Board of 
Commissioners. 

5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing offer by not less than ten 
percent (10%) of the first $1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the 
remainder of that offer. 

6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a deposit in the amount 
of five percent (5%) of the bid; the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s 
check, or certified check.  The County will return the deposit on any bid not 
accepted, and will return the deposit on an offer subject to upset if a 
qualifying higher bid is received.  The County will return the deposit of the 
final high bidder at closing. 

7. The terms of the final sale are that 
- the County Commissioners must approve the final high offer before the 

sale is closed, which it will do within 30 days after the final upset bid 
period has passed, and 

- The buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property from sale at any time 

before the final high bid is accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

79



9. If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial public notice, the offer set 
forth above is hereby accepted.  The appropriate County officials are 
authorized to execute the instruments necessary to convey the property to D. 
Stephen Clinton. 

 
Adopted this 15th day of June, 2009. 
 
 
             
      J. Owen Etheridge, Chairman 

Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
     ATTEST: 
 

      
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 

 

80



1 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 1 

AMENDING CHAPTER 1, SECTION 1-8 OF THE CURRITUCK COUNTY CODE OF 2 
ORDINANCES TO PROVIDE FOR GENERAL PENALTIES FOR CODE VIOLATIONS 3 

 4 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-123 a county may provide for fines and 5 
penalties for violation of its ordinances and may by ordinance provide that violation of a county 6 
ordinance subjects the offender to a civil penalty to be recovered by the county in a civil action 7 
in the nature of a debt; and 8 
 9 
 WHEREAS, it is necessary and advisable to provide civil penalties as an alternative to 10 
criminal penalties for the enforcement of county ordinances. 11 
 12 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners for the 13 
County of Currituck as follows: 14 
 15 
Part I.  Section 1-8. General penalty; continuing violation of the Currituck County Code of 16 
Ordinances is rewritten to read as follows: 17 
 18 
 Sec. 1-8.  General penalty; continuing violations. 19 
 20 
 (a)  Wherever in this Code or in any ordinance of the county any act is prohibited or is 21 
 made or declared to be unlawful or an offense or a misdemeanor, or wherever in such 22 
 Code or ordinance the doing of any act is required or the failure to do any act is declared 23 
 to be unlawful or an offense or an infraction or a misdemeanor, where no specific penalty 24 
 is provided therefor the violation of any such provision of this Code or any such 25 
 ordinance shall be punished by a fine of not more than $500.00 or by imprisonment for 26 
 not more than 30 days for each separate violation; provided, that no fine shall exceed 27 
 $50.00 unless the ordinance expressly states that the maximum fine is greater than 28 
 $50.00. Each day any violation of this Code or any ordinance shall continue shall 29 
 constitute a separate offense, unless otherwise specified. 30 
 31 
 (b)  In addition to any criminal penalty set out in this section, violations of this Code 32 

 shall subject the offender to a civil penalty upon the issuance of a citation for such 33 

 violation as hereinafter provided. The civil penalty, if not paid to the county finance 34 

 officer within 15 days of the issuance of a citation, may be recovered by the county in a 35 

 civil action in the nature of debt. Unless otherwise provided by a specific provision of 36 

 this Code, such civil penalties shall be no more than $500.00 for each violation, and each 37 
 day any single violation continues shall be a separate violation.  38 

 (c)   In addition to any civil or criminal penalties set out in this section, any provision of 39 

 this Code or any other county ordinance may be enforced by an appropriate equitable 40 

 remedy issuing from a court of competent jurisdiction. In such case, the general court of 41 

 justice shall have jurisdiction to issue such orders as may be appropriate, and it shall not 42 

81



2 

 

 be a defense to the application of the county for equitable relief that there is an adequate 1 
 remedy at law. 2 

 (d)   In addition to any civil or criminal penalties set out in this section, any provision of 3 

 this Code or any other county ordinance that makes unlawful a condition existing upon or 4 

 use made of real property may be enforced by injunction and order of abatement, and the 5 

 general court of justice shall have jurisdiction to issue such orders. When a violation of 6 

 such a provision occurs, the county may apply to the appropriate division of the general 7 

 court of justice for a mandatory or prohibitory injunction and order of abatement 8 

 commanding the defendant to correct the unlawful condition upon or cease the unlawful 9 

 use of the property. The action shall be governed in all respects by the laws and rules 10 

 governing civil proceedings, including the Rules of Civil Procedure in general and Rule 11 
 65 in particular. 12 

 (e)   In addition to an injunction, the court may enter an order of abatement as a part of 13 
 the judgment in the cause. An order of abatement may direct that: 14 

  (1)   Buildings or other structures on the property be closed, demolished or  15 
  removed; 16 

  (2)   Fixtures, furniture or other movable property be removed from buildings on  17 
  the property; 18 

  (3)   Grass and weeds be cut; 19 

  (4)   Improvements or repairs be made; or 20 

  (5)   Any other action be taken that is necessary to bring the property into   21 
  compliance with this Code or such ordinance. 22 

 If the defendant fails or refuses to comply with an injunction or with an order of 23 

 abatement within the time allowed by the court, he may be cited for contempt, and the 24 

 county may execute the order of abatement. The county shall have a lien on the property 25 

 for the cost of executing an order of abatement in the nature of a mechanic's and 26 

 materialman's lien. The defendant may secure cancellation of an order of abatement by 27 

 paying all costs of the proceedings and posting a bond for compliance with the order. The 28 

 bond shall be given with sureties approved by the clerk of superior court in an amount 29 

 approved by the judge before whom the matter is heard and shall be conditioned on the 30 

 defendant's full compliance with the terms of the order of abatement within a time fixed 31 

 by the judge. Cancellation of an order of abatement shall not suspend or cancel an 32 
 injunction issued in conjunction therewith. 33 

82



3 

 

 (f)   The provisions of this Code and any other town ordinances may be enforced by one 1 

 all or a combination of the remedies authorized and prescribed by this section; except that 2 

 any provision the violation of which incurs a civil penalty shall not be enforced by 3 
 criminal penalties. 4 

 (g)   Except as otherwise specifically provided, each day's continuing violation of any 5 

 provision of this Code or any other town ordinance shall be a separate and distinct 6 
 offense. 7 

 (h)   A violation of this Code, the penalty for which is a civil penalty, shall be 8 
 enforced as provided in subsections (i), (j), and (k) of this section.  9 

 (i)   Upon determination of a violation of any section of this Code, the penalty for which 10 

 is a civil penalty, the county shall cause a warning citation to be issued to the violator, 11 

 setting out the nature of the violation, the date of the violation and an order to 12 

 immediately cease the violation or, if the violation is in the nature of an infraction for 13 

 which an order of abatement would be appropriate in a civil proceeding, stating a 14 

 reasonable period of time in which the violation must be abated. The warning citation 15 

 shall specify that a second citation shall incur a civil penalty. The initial issuance of a 16 

 warning citation upon a violator as provided above shall not be required for the 17 

 immediate imposition of civil penalties for a determination of a violation of any of the 18 
 following provisions: 19 

  (1)  Chapter 3, Section 3-36; 20 

  (2)  Chapter 9, Section 9-4, Section 9-7, Section 9-33; 21 

  (3)  Chapter 10, Section 10-58, Section 10-59, Section 10-61, Section 10-62(b),  22 
  Section 10-62(c), Section 10-63(c), Section 10-64, Section 10-104; 23 

  (4)  Chapter 12, Section 12-62; 24 

 (j)   Upon failure of the violator to obey the warning citation, a civil citation shall be 25 

 issued by the appropriate official of the town and either served directly on the violator or 26 

 his duly designated agent, or registered agent if a corporation, in person or posted in the 27 

 United States mail service by first class mail addressed to the last known address of the 28 

 violator as contained in the records of the town, or obtained from the violator at the time 29 

 of the issuance of the warning citation. The violator shall be deemed to have been served 30 

 upon the mailing of such citation. The citation shall direct the violator to appear before 31 

 the town treasurer, located in the town hall, within 15 days of the date of the citation or 32 

 alternatively to pay the citation by mail. The violation for which the citation is issued 33 

 must have been corrected by the time the citation is paid; otherwise, further citations shall 34 

83



4 

 

 be issued. Citations may be issued for each day the offense continues until the prohibited 1 

 activity is ceased or abated. Within a 12-month period, any repeat violation for which a 2 

 notice of violation, warning citation, or civil citation has been issued shall be considered 3 
 a continuation of the original violation. 4 

 (o)   If the violator fails to respond to a citation within 15 days of its issuance and pay the 5 
 penalty prescribed therein, the county may institute a civil action in the nature of debt in 6 
 the appropriate division of the state general court of justice for the collection of the civil 7 
 penalty. 8 
 9 
 PART III.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby 10 
repealed. 11 

PART IV.  This ordinance is effective upon its adoption. 12 

  13 

 ADOPTED this __________ day of ___________________, 2009. 14 

 15 

       ____________________________________ 16 

       J. Owen Etheridge, Chairman   17 

      18 

ATTEST: 19 

 20 

____________________________ 21 

Gwen H. Keene 22 

Clerk to the Board 23 

 24 

 25 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 26 

____________________________ 27 

Donald I. McRee, Jr. 28 

County Attorney 29 

 30 

Date adopted:  ________________ 31 

 32 

Motion to adopt by Commissioner ________________ 33 

Second by Commissioner _________________ 34 

Vote: _____ AYES   _____NAYS 35 
 36 

84



RESOLUTION 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS, The Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during it 
is regular meeting held on June 15, 2009 authorized the following property listed below, 
be disposed of; and 
 
WHEREAS, the mainland water department has two vehicles and the Detention Center 
Wastewater System has a generator to be declared surplus property. 
 
1995 Ford F250 asset number 3102 
1999 Ford Explorer asset number 4353 
Generator is an ECCO 120/208 volt, three phase with 25 KVA 
 
The above listed items will be auctioned. 
 
ADOPTED on the 15th day of June, 2009 
 
 
 
ATTEST      _________________________ 
       J. Owen Etheridge, 
_____________________    Chairman 
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 
 
 

85



 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FOR CURRITUCK 
COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA AMENDING THE SCHEDULE OF AIRPORT 

FEES 
 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-102 a board of commissioners 
may fix the fees charged by the county;  
 
 WHEREAS, it is desirable to modify certain fees charged for use of the Currituck 
County Airport facilities.  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners for 
Currituck County, North Carolina that:    
 
 Section 1.  The Schedule of Fees for the Currituck County Airport is amended as 
follows: 
 
  
     Current  Proposed   Corporate Incentives 

 No. of  Square  Monthly  Monthly  Payment  
3 

year 
 Units  Footage  Rent  Rent  in Adv.   term 
            
Hangar A            
 7  936  175  175     
 1  2,172  350  400     
 1  2,340  328  420     
            
            
Hangar B            
 7  1,014  175  175     
 1  2,704  324  400  380  360 
 1  2,704  324  400  380  360 
            
            
Hangar C            
 4  3,299  0  475  450  425 
 1  3,830  0  550  525  500 
            
            
 
 
            

86



 
Concession Agreements         
            
Hang Gliding:           
            

 
7,000 per 

year           
            
Flight Lessons:           
            
 300 per year with no aircraft based at Currituck Regional Airport 
 150 per year with one aircraft based at Currituck Regional Airport  
   75 per year with two or more aircraft based at Currituck Regional Airport 
            
Tie Down Fees will stay the same $10 per month     

 
 
 Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon its adoption. 
 
 ADOPTED the 15th day of June, 2009. 
 
      __________________________ 
      J. Owen Etheridge, Chair 
      Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________ 
Gwen H. Keene,  
Clerk to the Board 
 
  
 
 (COUNTY SEAL) 

87



CURRITUCK COUNTY 
NORTH CAROLINA 
June 1, 2009 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 5:00 p.m. to review 
Wastewater and at 6:00 p.m. with the Outer Banks Board of 
Realtors. 
 
The Board of Commissioners met at 7:00 p.m. for its 
regularly scheduled meeting at the Historic Courthouse in 
the Commissioners Meeting Room with the following members 
present:  Chairman Etheridge, Commissioners O’Neal, 
Aydlett, Nelms, and Gregory. Commissioner Rorer was absent.  
 
Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 
The Reverend Scott Wilson-Parsons, Pilmoor Methodist 
Church, was present to give the invocation. 

Approval of Agenda 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to amend the agenda by 
continuing Item 7, 8 and 11.  Commissioner Gregory seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 
Item 2 Public Comment 

Please limit comments to items not appearing on the regular 
agenda, please limit comments to 3 minutes. 

Item 3 Presentation of FY 2010 Budget   

Item 4 Diane Nordstrom, presentation by Tourism Department   

Item 5 Public Hearing and Action  PB 07-23 Acorn Acres: Preliminary 
Plat/SUP for a one lot residential subdivision locate on Tulls 
Creek Road across from the intersection with Dozier Road, Tax Map 
49, Parcel 34U, Crawford Township. 

Item 6 Public Hearing and Action  PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill, Phase 
6C:  Preliminary Plat/SUP for a 3 lot subdivision within an 
existing Planned Unit Development located on the east side of 
Ocean Trail approximately 250' south of the intersection of Ocean 
Hill Blvd. East and Windance Lane, Tax Map 114E, Parcels WELL and 
98B, Poplar Branch Outer Banks Township. 

Item 7 Discussion and Consideration of license agreement fee for Flight 
Instruction at airport.   

Item 8 Discussion and Consideration of Tow Operator Ordinance   

Item 9 Appointments to Library Board   

Item 10 Appointments to Senior Center Advisory Board   

Item 11 Appointment to ABC Board   

88



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   2 

Item 12 Consent Agenda: 
1. Amendment to Code of Ordinances: General Penalty 
2. Approval of May 18, 2009, Minutes 
3. ABC Board-Corolla Lease Agreement 
4. Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for Sale of Parcel ID 

110C01200250000. 
5. Budget Amendments 
6. Resolution to declare law enforcement dog surplus 
7. Budget Amendment to purchase Stone property, building 

demolition and repairs at Spot Road property. 
8. Resolution Declaring Parcel ID 110C01200250000 as Surplus 

Property 

Item 13 Commissioner’s Report 

Item 14 County Manager’s  Report 

Adjourn 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Call to Order 

Presentation of FY 2010 Tourism Development Authority Budget 

Revised Applications and Guidelines for Support of Funds Program 

Adjourn 

Public Comment 
Please limit comments to items not appearing on 
the regular agenda, please limit comments to 3 
minutes. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public comment period.  There 
being no comments, he closed the comment period. 

Presentation of FY 2010 Budget  

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, presented the proposed budget 
for FY 2010 with no tax increase. 

Commissioner Nelms moved to hold a public hearing on June 
15, 2009.  Commissioner O’Neal seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried.  

Diane Nordstrom, presentation by Tourism Department  

Diane Nordstrom, Tourism Director, reviewed the results of 
the additional funding of $300,000 the Board provided for 
marketing.  She thanked the Board for their continued 
support.   

Public Hearing and Action  PB 07-23 Acorn Acres: 
Preliminary Plat/SUP for a one lot residential subdivision 

89



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   3 

locate on Tulls Creek Road across from the intersection 
with Dozier Road, Tax Map 49, Parcel 34U, Crawford 
Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
ITEM:   PB 07-23 Acorn Acres, Preliminary Plat/Special Use 

Permit, for a one lot subdivision.  
 

LOCATION: On the east side of Tulls Creek Road (SR 1222) at the 
intersection with Dozier Road (SR 1234), Crawford 
Township. 

TAX ID: Tax Map 49, Parcel 34U 
 
ZONING    
DISTRICT: Residential (R) 
 
PRESENT USE: Vacant Woodland 
 
OWNERS:  Countryscapes Landscaping, Inc. 
   336 N Gregory Road 
   Shawboro NC  27973 
 
ENGINEER:  Hyman and Robey, PC 
   PO Box 339 
   Camden NC  27921 

   
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Single Family Dwellings R 
SOUTH Woodland (RiversEdge Open Space) R 
EAST:  Single Family Dwellings R 
WEST: Single Family Dwellings R 
 
LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as 

Full Service within the Courthouse subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: Total Development:  12.72 acres 
 
NUMBER OF UNITS: One Residential Lot 
       
PROJECT DENSITY: .08 units/ acre 
 
STREETS: The lot fronts on Tulls Creek Road (SR 1222). 
 
UTILITIES: The development will be served by county water.  The 

applicant is proposing on-site wastewater systems for 
the lot. 

 
OPEN SPACE: No open space is required or provided for this 

subdivision. 
 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

90



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   4 

• The applicant is seeking preliminary plat/SUP approval for one 
additional lot within a proposed conventional subdivision. 

• On January 4, 2007 the Board of Commissioners granted sketch plan 
approval for a four lot open space residential subdivision on 
this property. 

 
II. OUTSTANDING TECHNICAL REVIEW COMMITTEE COMMENTS: 
Planning 
a. Water tap fees must be paid prior to final plat approval. 
 

III. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of 
Commissioners flexibility in the administration of the UDO. Through the 
SUP procedure, property uses which would otherwise be considered 
undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions 
of approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on 
surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve an SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The 
criteria and suggested findings of fact are outlined as follows: 
 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The application is complete. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible 

Uses as a special use indicated with an “S”. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. Chapter 10 of the UDO allows a major subdivision as a permissible 

use with a special use permit. 
 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of this ordinance. 

Suggested Findings: 
a. The conditions proposed meet the minimum requirements of this 

ordinance. 
 
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety: 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The proposed subdivision should have little to no impact on 

public health or safety. 
 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property and will be in harmony with the area in which it is located 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The Unified Development Ordinance indicates that a conventional 

major subdivision is allowed in the R zoning district with a 
special use permit. 

b. The parcel is currently within a neighborhood with densities 
similar to those proposed and should be in harmony with that 
neighborhood.   

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or 

other officially adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 

91



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   5 

a. The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service 
within the Courthouse subarea and the proposed use is in 
keeping with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 

i. Policy HN1 states “Currituck County shall encourage 
development to occur at densities appropriate for the 
location.”  The proposed subdivision is within the densities 
allowed for the location. 

ii.The Courthouse subarea policy emphasizes that the area will 
continue to grow as a small community center and will continue 
to see limited growth over the next decade.  Residential 
densities should be limited to one to two units per acre where 
on-site wastewater is proposed and other county services are 
limited. 

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide 

adequate public facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, 
fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for 
determining when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities 
must be in place or programmed to be in place within two years after 
the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of major 
subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The county has adequate public facilities to service this 

subdivision. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Since the submittal appears to meet all of the requirements for 
preliminary plat/SUP approval, staff recommends approval of this 
plat/SUP. 
 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. West motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations and 
change the 20 ft. access to a 30 ft. access for the Preliminary 
Plat/Special Use Permit for a one lot residential subdivision. Ms. 
Newbern seconded the motion. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PLANNING BOARD DISCUSSION 
Mr. West asked for clarification on the number of original lots. 
 
Mr. Woody stated that on the sketch plan it was four lots and the 
division of the fourth lot will create the fifth lot as the additional 
lot.  
 
Mr. West asked if the two lots will share the access which is 20 ft. 
wide. 
 
Mr. Hyman stated the shared access for this lot and the residual parcel 
which is a 10 acre parcel to the rear, has a cross easement that is 40 
ft. wide. They don’t envision access to be used by the one lot because 
the other lot which will come out of the parcel will be put on a cul-
de-sac that will come in from Brumsey Road.  
 
Mr. Woody stated the access for the residual parcel is 20 ft. wide. 
 
Mr. West asked if they could make the access for the residual parcel 30 
ft. wide because if the timber was ever to be cut the 20 ft. access 
would not be wide enough.  
 

92



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   6 

Mr. Hyman stated he can make this change. Mr. Hyman stated the wetlands 
have been delineated.  
 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing. There being 
no comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Gregory moved to approve with staff findings 
of fact.  Commissioner O’Neal seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

Public Hearing and Action  PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill, 
Phase 6C:  Preliminary Plat/SUP for a 3 lot subdivision 
within an existing Planned Unit Development located on the 
east side of Ocean Trail approximately 250' south of the 
intersection of Ocean Hill Blvd. East and Windance Lane, 
Tax Map 114E, Parcels WELL and 98B, Poplar Branch Outer 
Banks Township. 

Sworn testimony was given prior to making comments. 

Ben Woody, Planning Director, reviewed the request. 

 
ITEM: PB 88-66 Villages at Ocean Hill, Preliminary 

Plat/Special Use Permit, for a 3 lot subdivision 
within an existing Planned Unit Development.  
 

LOCATION: On the east side of Ocean Trail approximately 250’ 
south of the intersection of Ocean Hill Blvd. East 
and Windance Ln.  

TAX ID: Tax Map 114E, Parcels: WELL and 98B 
 
ZONING    
DISTRICT: Residential (RO1) 
 
PRESENT USE: Well and Vacant  
 
OWNERS:  Midlantic Builders 
   c/o Jim Bickford 
   P.O Box 2225 
   Kitty Hawk, NC 27949 
 
ENGINEER:  Bissell Professional Group  
   3512 North Croatan Highway 
   P.O.Box 1068 
   Kitty Hawk, NC 17949 

   
LAND USE/ZONING OF SURROUNDING PROPERTY: 
 Land Use Zoning 
NORTH: Residential Use RO1 
SOUTH Residential Use RO1 
EAST:  Residential Use RO1 
WEST: Residential Use and Commercial Use RO1 / GB 
 

93



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   7 

LAND USE PLAN  
CLASSIFICATION:  The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies the site as 

Full Service within the Corolla subarea. 
 
SIZE OF SITE: Villages at Ocean Hill Total - 153.5 acres 
 Subject Property - 1.02 acres 
 
NUMBER OF UNITS:  Existing units - 274 
    Proposed new units - 3 
    Proposed total units - 277 
 
PROJECT DENSITY:   1.8 units/ acre 
 
STREETS: The streets will be built to NCDOT construction 

standards.   
 
UTILITIES: The development will be serviced by Southern 

Outer Banks Water System and Villages at Ocean 
Hill Wastewater Treatment System 

 
OPEN SPACE: Open space has been previously dedicated for 

the Villages at Ocean Hill.  However, a 1,313 
square foot shortage in the required minimum 
lot area will be rectified by dedicating 1,313 
square feet of area to open space.   

 
I. NARRATIVE OF REQUEST: 

• The applicant is seeking preliminary plat/SUP approval for a 3 
lot residential subdivision within an existing planned unit 
development.  This subdivision will require the construction of a 
new access road named Tail Wind Ct.  The property is located 
adjacent to Currituck County well site #3 

• The original VOH sketch plan was approved by the Board of 
Commissioners on January 3, 1989 for 314 lots with a density of 
2.04 units per net acre.   

• Amended sketch plan approval was granted on February 17, 1992 
reducing total number of units to 299.   

• Amended sketch plan approval was granted on August 2, 1994 
reducing the total number of units from 299 to 268 (1.75 
units/acre) and to increase the commercial acreage from 2.0 acres 
to 10.76 acres (7%).   

• On August 16, 1999 the BOC granted amended sketch plan approval 
to increase commercial area to 11.23 acres with a total density 
of 268 units. 

• At the applicant’s request, on April 16, 2001 the BOC tabled and 
never acted on a request to decrease the commercial areas and 
increase the density by five units to allow for apartments. 

• On February 19, 2003, Planning Director Gary Ferguson 
administratively approved an additional lot by well site #3 to be 
off-set by creating additional open space in Phase 5. This 
increased the total units to 269, for a density of 1.75 units/ 
acre.  

• On March 5, 2007 the Commissioners approved 4 lots that had 
previously been well sites as residential lots to bring the total 
approved Sketch Plan lots to 273. Previous Sketch Plans had 
approved 269 lots. 

• On November 5, 2007, the Commissioners approved an Amended Sketch 
Plan to increase the density of the Villages at Ocean Hill by 1 

94



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   8 

lot. This property on Lakeside Drive appeared on previous Sketch 
Plans as a Homeowners Association site and a utility site. 

 
II. UNRESOLVED TRC COMMENTS: 

 a.  TRC approves the preliminary plat 
 

III. QUESTION(S) BEFORE THE BOARD: 
 
Special Use Permit Criteria and Staff Findings: 
 
Special use permits (SUP) are intended to allow the Board of 
Commissioners flexibility in the administration of the UDO. Through the 
SUP procedure, property uses which would otherwise be considered 
undesirable in certain districts can be developed subject to conditions 
of approval to minimize any negative effects they might have on 
surrounding properties. 
 
In order to approve the SUP, certain criteria must be satisfied.  The 
criteria and suggested findings of fact are outlined as follows: 
 
1. Completeness of application. 

Suggested Findings: 
a.The application is complete. 

 
2. The proposed use is among those listed in the Table of Permissible 

Uses as a special use indicated with an “S”.   
Suggested Findings: 
a.The proposed use is permissible with a Special Use Permit 

 
3. The conditions proposed meet or exceed the minimum requirements of 

this ordinance. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The conditions proposed meet the minimum requirements of this 

ordinance. 
 

4. The special use will not endanger the public health or safety. 
Suggested Findings: 
a.The proposed subdivision should have little to no impact on public 
health or safety.  Adequate water and sewer infrastructure has been 
proposed.  

 
5. The special use will not injure the value of adjoining or abutting 

property and will be in harmony with the area in which it is 
located. 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The subdivision is proposed within the RO1 portion of an existing 

PUD and is allowed by the UDO with a special use permit. 
b. The parcel is currently within an existing Planned Unit 

Development with densities similar to those proposed, and should 
be in harmony with the surrounding area.   

 
6. The special use will be in conformity with the Land Use Plan or 

other officially adopted plan. 
Suggested Findings: 

a.The 2006 Land Use Plan classifies this site as Full Service 
within the Corolla subarea and the proposed use is in keeping 
with the policies of the plan, some of which are: 
i. Policy HN1 states “Currituck County shall encourage 

development to occur at densities appropriate for the 

95



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   9 

location.”  The proposed subdivision is within the densities 
allowed for the location. 

ii.Policy OB1 states “Currituck County supports the provision of 
infrastructure and services adequate to meet basic quality of 
life and public health and safety requirements of residents of 
the Outer Banks”  The proposed subdivision has been designed 
with adequate water and sewer extensions.   

 
7. The special use will not exceed the county's ability to provide 

adequate public facilities, including, but not limited to, schools, 
fire and rescue, law enforcement, and other county facilities.  
Applicable state standards and guidelines shall be followed for 
determining when public facilities are adequate. Such facilities 
must be in place or programmed to be in place within two years after 
the initial approval of the plan (sketch plan in the case of major 
subdivisions). 
Suggested Findings: 
a. The county has adequate public facilities to service this 

subdivision. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Since the submittal appears to meet all of the requirements for 
preliminary plat/SUP approval, staff recommends approval of this 
plat/SUP. 
PLANNING BOARD ACTION 
Mr. Kovacs motioned to recommend approval with staff recommendations 
the Preliminary Plat/Special Use Permit for a 3 lot subdivision within 
an existing Planned Unit Development. Ms. Robbins seconded the motion. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

Chairman Etheridge opened the public hearing.  There being 
no comments, he closed the public hearing. 

Commissioner Aydlett moved to approve with staff findings 
of fact. Commissioner O’Neal seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

Discussion and Consideration of license agreement fee for 
Flight Instruction at airport.  

Continued  

Discussion and Consideration of Tow Operator Ordinance  

Continued 

Appointments to Library Board   

Continued 

Appointments to Senior Center Advisory Board   

Continued 

Appointment to ABC Board   

96



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   10 

Continued 

Consent Agenda: 
1. Amendment to Code of Ordinances: General 

Penalty 
2. Approval of May 18, 2009, Minutes 
3. ABC Board-Corolla Lease Agreement 
4. Resolution Authorizing Upset Bid Process for 

Sale of Parcel ID 110C01200250000. 
5. Budget Amendments 
6. Resolution to declare law enforcement dog 

surplus 
7. Budget Amendment to purchase Stone property, 

building demolition and repairs at Spot Road 
property. 

8. Resolution Declaring Parcel ID 110C01200250000 
as Surplus Property 

 

Commissioner Taylor moved to approve.  Commissioner Aydlett 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
27608-545000  Contract Services   $                  20,000    

27390-499900  
Fund Balance 
Appropriated     $                20,000  

       
     $                  20,000    $                20,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Moyock Watershed Service District (27608) - To increase appropriations for 
contract to clear right-of-way and ditch maintenance on ditch #5, approximately 
2,300 feet. 

Net Budget Effect: Moyock Watershed Service District (27) - Increased by $20,000. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

10330-447000  
Juvenile Crime Prev 
Control   $                    3,517    

10794-545002  Restitution     $                  2,550  

97



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   11 

10794-545005  JCPC Council     $                     967  
       
     $                    3,517    $                  3,517  
       
Explanation: JCPC (10794) - To record mandatory State budget reduction in funding. 
Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Decreased by $3,517. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10330-431000  DSS Administration   $                    7,008    
10330-432000  Administrative Aide     $                  7,008  
       
     $                    7,008    $                  7,008  
       
Explanation: 
 

Social Services - To adjust revenues to State authorizations. 

Net Budget Effect: Operating Fund (10) - No change. 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       

50390-495015  
T F - Occupancy Tax 
Fund   $                600,000    

50390-495042  T F - Transfer Tax     $              600,000  
       
     $                600,000    $              600,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 
 

Moyock Library Construction (50790) - To replace funding of the Moyock Library 
with Occupancy tax to funding with Transfer Tax.  This will make funding sources 
for the Moyock Library to date as follows:  $458,509 Capital Improvements 
Reserve (Fund 40) and $1,800,000 Transfer Tax Capital Reserve (Fund 42). 

       
Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - No Change. 
 
 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
50390-495042  T F - Transfer Tax   $                600,000    

98



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   12 

50390-495015  
T F - Occupancy Tax 
Fund     $              600,000  

       
     $                600,000    $              600,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 
 

Community Center (50795) - To replace a portion of the funding of the Community 
Center with Transfer Tax to funding with Occupancy Tax.  This will make funding 
sources for the Community Center to date as follows:  $10,240,000 from 
Occupancy Tax and $3,650,000 from Transfer Tax. 

Net Budget Effect: County Governmental Construction Fund (50) - No Change. 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 

WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of Currituck County, North Carolina during 
its regularly scheduled meeting held on June 1, 2009, authorized the following, pursuant 
to GS 160A and 270(b), that the law enforcement dog listed below be given to Deputy 
Randy Jones.  This dog was retired on May 18, 2009. 
 
 Asset Tag  Description    Serial Number 
     6139  German Shepard-BUCKY  None 

 
 

    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
10380-489000  TDA Distributions     $              348,000  
10796-545000  Contracted Services   $                  62,000    
10796-590000  Capital Outlay   $                286,000    
       
     $                348,000    $              348,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 

Equestrian Facility (10796) - To increase appropriations to purchase Stone 
property on Spot Road and for survey, building demolition, replace water pumps 
and pump houses and connect electricity to site. 

Net Budget 
Effect: Operating Fund (10) - Increased by $348,000. 

 
 
 

R E S O L U T I O N 
 
WHEREAS, Currituck County obtained title to parcel 
110C01200250000 located in the Poplar Branch Township through a 
property tax foreclosure; and 

  
WHEREAS, this parcel is not currently serving a governmental use 
or purpose; and 

99



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   13 

 
WHEREAS, this parcel holds only a nominal value to Currituck 
County, and the County would be better served if this parcel was 
returned to the County tax roll. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners 
of Currituck County, North Carolina, during its regularly 
scheduled meeting held on June 1, 2009, authorized that parcel 
110C01200250000, located in Poplar Branch Township, recorded in 
Deed Book 476, page 471 is declared as surplus property, pursuant 
to North Carolina General Statute Section 160A-265. 
 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING UPSET BID PROCESS 
 

WHEREAS, The County of Currituck owns certain property, PIN 
110C01200250000, 169 Michael Street, Lot 25, Block 12, Albemarle 
Sound Beach Estates, Jarvisburg, NC, located within Poplar Branch 
Township; and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute 160-269 permits the 
county to sell property by upset bid, after receipt of an offer 
for the property; and 
 
WHEREAS, the County has received an offer to purchase the 
property described above, in the amount of $7,500.00, submitted 
by B. A. Wallace of Raleigh, North Carolina. 
 
WHEREAS, B. A. Wallace has paid the required five percent (5%) 
deposit on this offer; 
 
THEREFORE, THE COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF CURRITUCK COUNTY RESOLVE 
THAT: 
 

1. The Board of Commissioners authorizes sale of the 
property described above through the upset bid procedure 
of North Carolina General Statute 160A-269. 

2. The County Clerk shall cause a notice of the proposed 
sale to be published.  The notice shall describe the 
property and the amount of the offer, and shall state the 
terms under which the offer may be upset. 

3. Persons wishing to upset the offer that has been received 
shall submit a sealed bid with their offer to the office 
of the County Clerk within 10 days after the notice of 
sale is published.  At the conclusion of the 10-day 
period the County Clerk shall open the bids, if any, and 
the highest such bid will become the new offer.  If there 
is more than one bid in the highest amount, the first 
such bid received will become the new offer. 

4. If a qualifying higher bid is received, the County Clerk 
shall cause a new notice of upset bid to be published, 
and shall continue to do so until a 10-day period has 
passed without any qualifying upset bid having been 

100



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   14 

received.  At that time, the amount of the final high bid 
shall be reported to the Board of Commissioners. 

5. A qualifying higher bid is one that raises the existing 
offer by not less than ten percent (10%) of the first 
$1,000.00 of that offer and five percent (5%) of the 
remainder of that offer. 

6. A qualifying higher bid must also be accompanied by a 
deposit in the amount of five percent (5%) of the bid; 
the deposit may be made in cash, cashier’s check, or 
certified check.  The County will return the deposit on 
any bid not accepted, and will return the deposit on an 
offer subject to upset if a qualifying higher bid is 
received.  The County will return the deposit of the 
final high bidder at closing. 

7. The terms of the final sale are that 
- the County Commissioners must approve the final high 

offer before the sale is closed, which it will do 
within 30 days after the final upset bid period has 
passed, and 

- The buyer must pay with cash at the time of closing. 
8. The County reserves the right to withdraw the property 

from sale at any time before the final high bid is 
accepted and the right to reject at any time all bids. 

9. If no qualifying upset bid is received after the initial 
public notice, the offer set forth above is hereby 
accepted.  The appropriate County officials are 
authorized to execute the instruments necessary to convey 
the property to B. A. Wallace. 

Commissioner’s Report 

Commissioner Taylor commented on the Relay for Life and 
Jazz Festival. 

Commissioner Aydlett commended the Sheriff’s Department for 
their service.  He also mentioned the Knotts Island Ruritan 
dinner. 

County Manager’s Report 

No comments 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

Special Meeting 

Tourism Development Authority 

Call to Order 

Chairman Etheridge called the meeting to order. 

101



June 1, 2009, BOC Meeting   15 

Presentation of FY 2010 Tourism Development Authority 
Budget 

Dan Scanlon, County Manager, presented the FY 2009-2010 
budget. 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to set the public hearing for 
June 15, 2009.  Commissioner Aydlett seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 

 

Revised Applications and Guidelines for Support of Funds 
Program 

Commissioner O’Neal moved to approve as submitted.  
Chairman Etheridge seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

 
    Debit  Credit 
       

    
Decrease Revenue 

or  
Increase Revenue 

or 
Account 
Number  Account Description  Increase Expense  

Decrease 
Expense 

       
15447-587010  T T  - Operating Fund   $                348,000    
15320-415000  Occupancy Tax     $              348,000  
       
     $                348,000    $              348,000  
       
Explanation: 
 
 
 

Tourism Related Expenses (15447) - To appropriate funds to transfer to the 
operating fund to purchase the Stone property on Spot road and to demolish 
structures, connect electricity, replace water pumps and pump houses and 
property survey. 

Net Budget Effect: Occupancy Tax Fund (15) - Increased by $348,000. 

Adjourn 

There being no further business, the meeting adjourned. 

 
 

102



 
 
 
 
 

 
RESOLUTION 

OF  
APPRECIATION 

 
WHEREAS, C. Michael Warren came to Currituck County on July 1, 2002, as 
Superintendent of the Currituck County Schools, after serving in the North Carolina 
School System for over 30 years as coach, teacher, assistant principal and principal; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, under his leadership, Currituck County School students have performed 
above the state average on end-of-grade tests, epitomizing the slogan, “A Beacon for 
Excellence in Education;” and  
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Warren has excelled in his dedication and loyalty in being committed to 
student achievement as evidenced by being recognized by the State School Board as a 
nominee finalist for Superintendent of the Year in 2005 and 2006.  He also received the 
Unsung Hero Regional Award in 2007 from the NC High School Athletic Association and 
the 2008 American Cancer Society South Atlantic Division Superintendent of the Year; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Warren is an honorable and respectable man, dedicated and 
hardworking, and an outstanding citizen in his community.  He has served on 
committees at the State level as well as the Currituck County Chamber of Commerce 
and the NC State Employees Credit Union Boards of Directors, the Lions Club, and the 
County Incorporation Commission.  He is also active in Pilmoor United Methodist 
Church, serving on the Church Council and as a Choir Member; and 
 
WHEREAS, Mr. Warren will be retiring from Currituck County Schools effective July 1, 
2009, having devoted 40 years to the education of the youth of North Carolina; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Currituck County Board of Commissioners 
commends Mr. Michael Warren and extends best wishes upon his retirement to one who 
has worked so faithfully and given so generously of his time and talents to make 
Currituck County a better place to live.  
 
ADOPTED  this the 15th day of June, 2009. 
 
            
       J. Owen Etheridge 
ATTEST:      Chairman 
 
            
Gwen H. Keene, CMC 
Clerk to the Board 

103



Change Order The Desi n Collaborative Architects

Moyock Public Library 07005
XXX Street Contract For
Moyock North Carolina Contract Date

Construction

Notice to Proceed Date September 2 2008

Date June 3 2009 CHANGE ORDER CO003
Item 1

To McKenzie Construction Corporation
400 S Road Street Suite B1
Elizabeth City NC 27909

The Contract is changed as follows

Item 1 COP12March 3 2009 Electrical Room Ceiling and three 3 ceiling
Access Panels 152000 0 days

Item 2 COP13March 27 2009 Credit for Type M Ballast 58000 0 days
Item 3 COP 14April 14 2009 Damper Wiring and Dominion Power Pipe

Sleeve 398400 0 days
Item 4 COPXXJune 2 2009 Allowance for undercut and fill in parking lot 5300000 0 days

TOTAL THIS CHANGE ORDER 5792400 0 days

Not valid until signed by the Owner Architect and Contractor

Original Contract Sum 158850900
Net change by previously authorized Change Orders 4101000

Contract Sum prior to this Change Order

Contract Sum will be increased by this Change Order by

The new Contract Sum including this Change Order will be

162951900
5792400

168744300

The date of Substantial Completion prior to this Change Order
The Contract Time will be unchanged by this Change Order by Zero 0 days
The new date of Substantial Completion including this Change Order will be September 2 2009

NOTE This summary does not reflect changes in the Contract Sum orContract Time that have been authorized by Construction Change Directive

The Design Collaborative McKenzie Construction Currituck County
230 North Lynnhaven Road Corporation P O Box 39
Virginia Beach VA 234520917 40 S Road Street Suite B1 Currituck NC 27929

E abeth City 7909

N RACT

t cr
1

OWNER

Sig ature Signature

Printed Name Printed Name

Title

j
l

Title

Date Date

nltdcprojects07005 moyock librarycontractadministrationcoconstr changeordersco0031co003doc Page 1

104



4ucx coGr Currituck County County Engineer
Post Office Box 38

Currituck North Carolina 27929

2522322504

1668

MEMOPANDUM

To Board of Commissioners

From Eric T Weatherly PE

Currituck County Engineer

Ref Change Order for Fire Hydrant Project
Close Out

Airport Hangar C Construction

Date June 5 2009

On April 24 2008 we received bids for the construction of a 5

unit hangar building at the airport Bassett Construction

Company has completed the construction and a Certificate of

Occupancy was received on February 20 2009

As part of the project county staff requested a fire hydrant be

installed next to the hangar This was not part of the original
bid and has required engineered plans and state permitting All

permits have been received to extend the water main and

construct the fire hydrant

The attached change order will allow Bassett Construction to

install the fire hydrant and close out the project Ample funds

are available in the project to cover the costs

The original project cost was1042000 There was 85206534
in grants with a County match of 18993466 The final project
costs are106094033 with additional grants totaling
89373234 Therefore the final County match is 16720799

saving the County 2272667 as originally budgeted

105


	Agenda
	6:00 Multi-Family Overlay
	RMF Overlay

	Presentation of Meritorious Award to Deputy Brian Dudley and Deputy Garland Akers 
	Meritorious Award Act

	Public Hearing and Action
	PB 09-03 case analysis
	PB 09-03 aerial photo

	Public Hearing and Action
	Solid Waste

	Approval of Economic Development Board Rules & Procedures 
	Rules & Procedures
	letter

	Appointments to Senior Citizen Advisory Board
	Applications for Sr Cit Bd
	Senior Citizen Advisory Board 

	Appointment to ABC Board
	ABC Board Appt

	Appointments to Library Board of Trustees
	Library Board Appt

	Resolution in support of application to NC DENR-DWQ for
ARRA-CWSRF FUNDING for Moyock Central Sewer Force Main

	Resolution

	Budget Amendments
	Budget Amendments

	Resolution opposing Public Health Improvement Plan
	resolution

	Lease with ITT Corp. for ADSB Radio Station site at Airport
	lease
	tower location

	Resolution Declaring Parcel ID 110B00400360000 as Surplus Property
	Resolution-Surplus Property
	Offer to Purchase and Property Info

	Resolution Authorizing the Upset Bid Process for Sale of Parcel ID 110B00400360000
	Resolution-Upset Bid Process

	Amendment to Code of Ordinances: General Penalty
	ordinance

	Resolution Surplus Property Water Department
	Surplus Property

	Amendment to Concession License agreement for Flight Instruction at airport
	Resolution

	Approval of June 1, 2009, Minutes
	June 1 Minutes

	Resolution of Appreciation for C. Michael Warren
	Resolution-Warren

	Moyock Library Change Order 003-Parking Lot Undercut
	Moyock Library CO 003

	Airport Hangar C - Change Order for Fire Hydrant and Project Close Out
	Hargar C Change Order


